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Independent Auditor's Report

The Honorable Julian E. Dufreche, Mayor
and City Council Members
City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of
Ponchatoula, lLoulsiana, as of June 30, 1939, and for the vyvear then ended, as listed in the
table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of
the City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards regulire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosureg in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assesgssing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana,
as ol June 30, 1998, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its
proprietary fund type and similar trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
Auvgust 19, 199%, on our consideration of City of Ponchatoula, Louilsiana’s control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisgsions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants,

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The combkining, individual fund, and individual
account group financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents as
supplementary information, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a reguired part of the general purpose financial statements of the City of Ponchatoula,

P. Q. Box 506 » 112 East Chestnut Strect © Amite, Louisianag 70422 o (504)748-5134 e Fax: (504)748-4116
103 North Sixth Street e Ponchatoula, Louisiana 70454 ¢ (504)380-8180 » Fax: (504)386-0210
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Louisiana. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S8. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Preofit Organizations, and is
also not a regulred part of the general purpose financial statements of The City of
Ponchatoula, Louisiana. Such information, except for that portion marked "unaudited" on
which we express no opinion, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented
in all material respects i1n relation to the general purpose financial statements taken
as a whole.

The financial informaticon for the preceding year which is included for comparative
purposes was taken from the financial report for that year in which we expressed an
unqualified opinion on the general purpose financial statements of the City of
Ponchatoula, Louisgiana.

Respectfully submitted,

Ouamin &

DURNIN & JAMES,




GENERAL PURFOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(COMBINED STATEMENTS - OVERVIEW)
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT B
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - ATL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999
TQTALS
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES {(MEMORANDUM ONLY)
SPECIAL DERBT CAPITAL JUNE 30, JUNE 20,
GENERAIL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS 1999 1998
Reveonues:
T o e 5 5 252,730 5 1,733,237 5 - s - 5 1,985,962 S 1,791,997
Licenses and Permits 272,784 - - - 272,784 264,111
Intergovernment al 402,828 46,552 - - 449,380 410,093
Finecs and Forfeitures 87,466 - - - 87,466 83,229
Sanlitation Service Fees 251,538 - - - 251,538 242,626
Culture and Recreation 1,075 - - - 1,075 9RS
Interest - - ~ - - -
Migscellaneous 116,820 46,516 13,7985 23,8566 201,107 188 607
Total Revenues 1,385,241 S 1,826,300 S 13,7949 & 23,966 $ 3,249,306 S 2,981,648
Expenditures:
Caurrent
General Government S 488,694 % 14,1589 5 - 5 1,235 5 04, 0B8 S 530,237
Public¢ Safety a70,560 147,697 - - 1,118,257 1,009,468
Fublic Works £52, 087 ~ = - £%2, 057 605,684
Cemetery 40,099 - - - 40,099 38,803
Pubrlic Health - 7,134 - - 7.134 -
Culture and
Recreation 100,432 - - - 100,432 97,008
Miscellaneous
Pt ograms 171,235 53,387 - - 224,592 240,632
Capltal Outlay g2,021 65,714 ~ 159,231 306,976 157,02¢
Debt Service 56,801 ~ 166,967 - 263,768 215,394
Total Expenditures S 2. 601,309 s 288,061 S 166,967 S 160,466 S 3,217,403 5 2,894,255
Excessas {(Deficiency)
cf Revenues QOver
Expenditures ${1,216,668) $ 1,538,239  $(353,168) 5(136,500) & 31,903 & 87,393
Other Financing Soeurces
(Usies) .
Operating Transfers In $ 1,232,101 S 13,050 5 168,967 2 - 5 1,414,118 S 1,276,130
Operating Transfers Out - (1,298,1321 {13,050} - (1,411,182) (1,276, 376)
Proceeds From Debt Issued 59,048 - - 750,000 B09,048 249,165
Debt lssuance Cost - - - - - L -
Total Other
Financing Sourcos
(Uses) $ 1,291,148 $(1.385.082) % 155 917 5 750,000 5 811,984 5 38,919
Excess {Deficiency) of
Revenues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures
and Other Uses S 74,481 5 153,157 S 2,749 S 613,500 S 843,887 S 126,312
Fund Balances at
Beginning of Year 133,007 812,613 230,300 11,720 1,187,710 1l 061, 3588
Fund Balances at
End of Year 5 207,488 S 965,770 S 233,049 5 625,290 S 2,031,597 $=},18?,?1D

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT D

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

AND FUND BALANCE - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE AND STMILAR TRUST FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 1899
PROPRIETARY SIMILAR TOTALS
FUND TYPE TRUST FUND (MEMORANDUM ONLY )
ENTERPRISE NONEXPENDABLE June 30, June 30,
FUNDS TRUST FUND 1999 1998
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services S 811, 796 5 ~ 5 811, 786 S 735,309
Contributions - 4,850 4,850 7,296
Interest = 3,964 3,954 4,126
Total Operating Revenues S 811,796 5 8,814 N 820,610 5 746,731
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and Employee Benefits S 139, 383 S - S 129,383 S 139,929
Materials and Supplies 32,530 - 32,530 35,500
Repairs and Maintenance 99,683 - 99,683 73,511
Utilities and Telephone 138,376 - 138,376 120,267
lnsurance 16,892 - 16,992 11,152
REad Debts 10,010 - 10,0140 16,661
Vehicle Expense 7,458 ~ 7,458 9,909
Engineering - - - 390
Other Expenses CL&, 861 3,964 56,825 44,479
Depreciation Expense 206,396 - 206,399 198,285
Total Operating Expenses 5 706,692 S 3,964 S 710,656 S 650,083
Operating Income & 105,104 2 4,850 5 109,954 S 96,648
Nonoperating Revenues [Expenses):
Interest Income $ 33,076 $ - 5 33,076 S 31,421
Interest ExXpense (84 ,280) - (84,280) [ 894.322)
Total Nonoperating Revenueg
(Expenses) g {51,204) g - 5 (51,204) 3{ 62,901)
Income (Loss) before
Operating Transfers 5 53,900 5 4,850 S 58, 750 S 33,747
Operating Transfers 1n (Out):
Operating Transiers In 5 - o - 3 - 5 246
Operating Transfers QOut {2,935) s (2,935) -
Total Operating Transfers In
(Out) 5 (2,935) 2 - > (2,935) 5 246
Net Income (Loss) 3 50,965 5 4,850 5 55, 815 S§ 33,993
Add: Current Year Depreciation on Fixed
Asgets Acquired by Grants
Restricted for Construction that
Reduces Contributed Capital 41,345 - 41,345 46,486
Increase in Retained Earninags/
Fund Balance 5 92,310 5 4,850 5 97,160 S 80,479
Retained Earnings/Fund Balance -
Beginning of Year 800,626 84,731 985,357 904,878
Retained Earnings/Fund Balance -
Frnd of Year $ 892,936 $ 89,581 $.1,082,517 $ 985,357

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Ponchatoula

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY
FIIND TYPER AND SIMILAR TRUST FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 1929

PROPRIETARY SIMILAR
FUND TYPE TRUST FUND
ENTERPRISE NONEYPENDARLE

FUNDS TRUST FUND

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Losg) < 105,104 5 4,850
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating
Income to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities:
Depreciation 206,389 -
Provision for Uncollectible
Accounts - -
Changes 1n Assets and Liabllities:
(Increase) in Accounts Recelivable 7,045 -
Increase in Accounts Pavyable (220,015) -
Increase in Customey Deposits 21,458 -
Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities $ 112,291 S 4,850

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing
Activities:

Increase {(Decreased 1n Due from

Ot her Funds 5 - 5
Operating Transierys 1In From Othey

Fungs 5,430 -
Operating Transfers QOut to Other

Funds (8,365) -

Neet Cash Provided by
Noncapital Financing
Activities 5 {2,935} $

Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities:

Capital Grants Received & 480, 965 S -
Construction of Capital Assets {298, 752) -
Purchase of Eguipment {15,943} -

Contributed Capital-Municipality - -
Froceods from Revenue Bonds Issued - -
Principal Paid on Revenue Ronds (SB,924) -
Interest Paid on Revenue Bonds {84 ,280) -
Interest Pald on Capital Lease

Ol igations - -
IPrincipal Paid on Capital Lease

Obligations - =

Net Cash Used in Capital and
Related Financing
Activities $ (16 ,934) S -

{CONTINUED)

11

EXHIBIT E
TOTALS
{MEMORANDUM ONLY}
June 30, June 30,
1999 1998
5 109, 954 5 96,648
206,399 198, 285
- ( 47,400)
7,045 38,205
(220,015) 3,995
21,458 F, 220
5 124 ,84)] 5 296,953
5 = S{ 18,076}
5,430 246
_(51}65__} il
5 (2,935) S( 17,830)
5 480,965 S 140,149
(298, 752) {143,049)
{15,9473) { 54,8631
(98.,924) { 95,000}
(B4 ,2B0) ( 98,452)

3 (16,934)

$(251,215)
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ATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY
SIMILAR TRUST FUND (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 1899
PROPRIETARY SIMILAR
FUND TYFPE TRUST FUND
ENTERPRISE NONEXPENDABLE
FUNDS TRUST FUND
Cash Flows From Investing Activitjes:
Interest Earned on Investments S 33,076 S -
Purchase of Investments {529,465) (89,322)
Proceeds from Maturities of
Investments 294 ,B9O Bd,472
Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Investing Activities S (201,499} N (4,850)
Increase {(Decrease) in Cash S {(101,377) §
Cash - Beginning of Year 479,658 -
Cash - End of Year S 378.322 $_ -
Reconciliation of Cash Accounts:
Unrestricted Cash 3 220,060 5

Regliricted Cash 158 262

Total s 378,322 S -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

12

EXHIRBRIT ¥
(CONTINUED}
TOTALS
(MEMORANDUM ONLY)
June 30, June 30,
1994 19598
5 33,076 S 31,419
(618, 787) (338,096}
379,362 334,390
S {(206,349) $ 27,713
$  {101,377) 5 55,621
175,699 424,078
5 378,322 5 479,699
4 220,060 $ 144,351
158,262 335,348
S 378,322 S 479,699
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NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999
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City of Ponchatoula

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 129%

SUMMARY COF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

Introduction

The City o©f Ponchatoula, Louisiana (the "City") was first incorporated on
February 12, 1861. Upon the City's acceptance of the provisions of Act 136
enacted on July 29, 1828, it became governed under the Lawrason Act. The City
operates under a Mayor- City Council form of government. The Mayor is elected
for a four year term. The City Council consists of five council members. Each
council member is elected from a separate district in the City and serves a four
vear term of office. The Mayor and each member of the City Council are

compensated for their service to the City. The City of Ponchatoula is located
north of New Orleansg, DLoulsiana and east of Baton Rouge, Louisiana, at the
intersections of Interstate Highway 55 and Interstate Highway 12. The
population of the City of Ponchatoula according to the most recent census taken
in 19%0 1s 6,022. The current number of commercial and residential utility
customers served is 2,250. The City provides the following services: public
safety (police and fire), streets, dralnage, sganitation, culture-recreation,
public improvements, planning and zoning, and general and administrative
services. Other services include water and sewer utilities. The City presently
maintains 50 miles of roads and streets. The City has 55 full-time employees.

The accounting and reporting policies of the City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana
conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to
governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards RBoard {GASB) 1s the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principals. Such accounting and reporting procedures alsceo conform to
the requirements of Loulsiana Revised Statutes 24:517 and to the industry audit
gulde, Auditgs of State and lLocal Governmental Unaits.

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies.

Financial Reporting Entity

As the municaipal governing authority, for reporting purposes, the City of
Ponchatoula is considered a separate financial reporting entity. The financial
reporting entity consigts of (a) primary government (municipality), ()
organizations for which the primary government is financlally accountable, and
(¢} other organizations for which nature and significance of their relationship
with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14 established c¢riteria
for determining which component units should be considered part of the City of
Ponchatoula for financial reporting purposes., The basic criterion for including
a potential component wunit within the reporting entity 1s financial
accountability. The GASB hag set forth criteria to be considered in determining
financial accountability. This criteria includes:

14
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C¢ity of Ponchatoula

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 1999

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and
a. The ability of the City Council to impose its will on that organization
and/or
b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial

benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City Council.

2. Organizations for which the City Council does not appoint a voting majority
but are fiscelly dependent on the Council.

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be
misleading if data of the organization is not included because of the nature
or significance of the relationship.

Based on the application of the above criteria, it was determined the City of
Ponchatoula has no potential component unit. As a result, this report includes
all funds and account groups which are controlled by or dependent on the City's
executive and legislative branches (the Mayor and City Council). Contrel by or
dependence on the City was determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing
authority, authority to issue debt, election or appointment of governing body,
and other general oversight responsibility.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of fundg and account groups,
each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operationg of
each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabkilities, fund eguity, revenues, and expenditures, oY
expenses, ag appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted
for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent
and the means by which spending activities are controclled. The various funds
are grouped, in the financial statements in this report, into six generic fund
types and three broad fund categories as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of the municipality’s
general activities, including the collection and disbursement of specific or
legally restricted wmonies, the acguisition or construction of general tixed
assets, and the servicing of general long-term debt. Governmental funds
include:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. IC
is used to account for all financial resources ex¢ept those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

15




City of Ponchatoula

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 1929¢g

Special Revenue Funds - 8Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources {other than major capital projects) that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes,

Debt Service PFunds - Debt Service Funds account for resources set aside to pay
interest and principal on long-term debt.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for
financial resources used for the acguisiltion or construction of major capital
facilities not reportable in other funds.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that
are financed and coperated in a manner similar to private business enterprises -
where the intent of the governing body ig that the cogts (expenses, including
depreciation} of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basgis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges or (b))
where the governing body has decided the periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability and other
purposes.

Proprietary Funds are reported 1in accordance with GASB Statement No. 20,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for FProprietary Funds and other Governmental
Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting. This standard requires that all
applicable GASB pronouncements, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Ac¢counting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and
Accounting Regearch Bulleting {(ARBs) igssued on or before November 30, 1289 be
applied to @proprietary activities unless they (FASB Statements  and
Interpretations, APB Opinions, and ARBg) conflict with or contradict GASE
pronouncements.

GASB Statement No. 20 also states that for proprietary activities, management
may elect to apply all FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November
30, 1989, except for those that conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.
Proprietary activities under the control of the primary government (City-Parish)
will not elect to apply FASB Statementg and Interpretations issued after
November 30, 1989, unless they are adopted by GASBE.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside

parties, including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the
municipality. Fiduciary funds include:

16




City of Ponchatoula

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 1899

Nonexpendable Trust Fund - The Nonexpendable Trust Fund is used to account for
assets held by the City in a trustee capacity. The Nonexpendable Trust Fund is
accounted for essentially ags a proprietary fund since capital maintenance is
critical.

Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined
by its measurement focus. All governmental funds, including General, Special
Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Fundg, are accounted for using a
current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus,
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the
balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases {revenues
and other financing scources) and decreases {expenditures and other uses) in net
current assetlts.

Governmental funds and agency funds are maintained on the modified accrual basis

of accounting. Governmental fund revenues are recognized in the accounting
period in which they become available and measurable. Property taxes are
congidered measurable in the calendar year of the tax levy. Sales taxes and

gross receipt business taxes are recognized in accerdance with GASEB Statement
No. 22, Accounting for Taxpayer Assessed Tax Revenues 1in Governmental Funds.
Sales taxes and gross receipts business taxes are considered “measurable’ when
received by the City within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be

used to pay liabilities of the current period. Anticipated refunds of such
taxes are recorded as fund liabilities and reductions of revenue when they are
measurable and wvalid. Special Assessments are recognized as revenues only to

the extent that individual installments are considered current assets. Revenues
from State and Federal grants are recognized wnen the reimbursable expenditures
have been incurred. Licenses and Permits, Fineg and Forfeits, and Migcellaneous
Revenues l(except investment earnings) are recorded as revenues when received in
cash. Charges for Services and investment earnings are recorded as earned since
they are measurable and available. Expenditures are reccognized 1in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if
measurable, eXcept for the following: (1) principal and interest on long-term
debt are recorded when due, and (2) claims and judgments, group health c¢laims
and compensated absences are recorded as expenditures when paid with expendable
available financial resources.

All proprietary funds and non-expendable trust funds are accounted for on a flow
of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all
assetg and all liabilities asgoclated with the operation of these funds are
included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (net total assets) is segregated
into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Operating statements
for proprietary fund types present increaseg (revenues) and dedreases {expenses)
in net total assets. Proprietary funds are maintained on the accrual basis of
accounting wherein revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which
they are earned and become measurable, and expenses are recognized in the period

17
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City of Ponchatoulas

NOTES TOQ IFIN IAL, STATEMENTS (CONTINUBED)

June 30, 1989

incurred, if measurabhle.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected
in these financial statements.

1. The City Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Mayor and
City Council no later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each
fiscal vyear. The proposed budget for the year ended June 30, 1989, was
submitted to the City Council on June 11, 1598,

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified that
the proposed budget is available for public inspection. At the same time,
a public hearing ig called. The proposed budget for the year ended June 30,
1999, was published on June 19, 1998,

3. A public¢ hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after
publication of the call for the hearing. A public hearing was held on the
proposed budget for the year ended June 30, 15899, on June 292, 1598.

4. After the holding of the publi¢ hearing and completion of all action
necessary to finalize and implement the budget, the budget 1g adopted
through passage of an ordinance prior to the commencement of the fiscal year
for which the budget is being adopted. The proposed budget for the vyear
ended June 30, 1999, was adopted as Ordinance No. 4920 on June 29, 1998.

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department,
program or function to another or involving increases 1in expendatures
resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated require the approval of
the City Council. The budget for the year ended June 30, 1999, was amended
on March 25, 19%9, by the adoption of Ordinance No. 498, and on June 24,
19299, by the adoption of Ordinance No. 505.

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

7. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted
amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council.

8 . Formal budgetary integration is not employed.

Cash and Investments

Cash includes amountg in demand depositsg, interest bearing demand deposits, and
money market accounts. Under state law, the City may depesit funds in demand
deposits, interest bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time
deposits with state banks organized under Loulsiana law and national banks

18
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City of Ponchatoula

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 20, 198989

having their principal coffices in Louisiana.

Under state law, the City may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or

certificates. These are classified as investments 1f their original maturities
exceed 90 days; however, 1f the original maturities are 90 days or less, they
are classified as cash. Investments are stated at cost.

The City maintains a cash investment pool (Central Depository Account) that is
used primarily by the General Fund and the Water and Sewey Enterprise Punds.
Fach fund's portion of this cash pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet
as cash. Investments are gseparately held by several of the City's funds.

Short-Term Interfund Receivablesg/Pavyables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables
are clasgsified as due from other funds or due to other funds on the balance
sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classified as 1interfund receivables/
payables.

Advances to Other Funds

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as
advances and ave offsgset equally by a fund balance regerve account, which
indicates that they do not constitute expendable available financial resources
and, therefore, are not available for appropriation.

Inventory

The City utilizes the “purchagse method" of accounting for supplies whereby
expendable operating supplies are recognized as expenditures when purchased.
The City did not record any inventory at June 30, 1999, as the amount is not
material.

Regtricted Agsets

Certain proceeds 0of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources
set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the
balance sheet hecause their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.
Applicable bond covenants include adequacy of (1) sewer rates and coverage
reguirements, (2) annual review of user fees, (3) records, accountsg and annual
audit reguirement, (4) insurance and fidelity bonds, and (5) wvarious
miscellaneous covenants regarding appointment of engineer, utilization of funds
and other provisions.

19




_——_—  —_—  —_— = E_— =

City of Ponchatoula

NOTES TO PFINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 1999

Fixed Assetsg

Fixed assets of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time
purchased or constructed, and the related assets are capitalized in the general
fixed assets account group. Public¢ domain or infrastructures are capitalized.
Interest costs incurred during construction are capitalized. No depreciation
nas been provided on deneral Yixed assets. All fixed assets are valued at
histeorical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available.

Fixed assets used in the proprietary fund operations are included on the balance

sheet o©f the funds net of accumulated depreciation, Depreciation o©of all
exhaustible fixed assets used by proprietary fund operations is charged as an
expense agalnst operations. Depreciation 1is computed using the feollowing

methods and useful lives:

Water and Sewer Utility - Buildings 50 Years
Water and Sewer Improvements 40 - 75 Years
Equipment 10 Years

Compensated Absences

The City's policy 18 to allew employees' wvacation pay based on employee
classification and length of service. Sick leave is provided for by the City
but 1s noncumulative and the employee's right to unused sick leave doegs not
vest. Vacation pay 1s cumulative with any unpaid amounts paid to employees upon

separation from City's service.

The cost of current leave privileges, computed in accordance with GASB
Codification Section C60, 1s recognized as a current-vyvear expenditure in the
governmental funds. The cost of leave privileges not requiring current

resources is recorded in the general long-term obligations account group. Leave
praivileges associated with employees of the proprietary funds are recorded as
a Tund liagbility and operating expenses under salaries on Exhibit b.

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term obligations expected to be financed from governmental funds are
reported in the general long-term obligations account group. Expenditures for
principal and interest payments for long-term obligations are recognized in the
governmental funds when due. Long-term obligations expected to be financed from
proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds.

Fund Eqguity

Contributed Capital

Contributed capital i1s recorded in proprietary funds that have received capital
grants or contributions from developers, customers, or other funds when such
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QTES TO FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 1989

regources are restricted for the acguisition or construction of capital assets.
Contributed capital i1s amortized based on the depreciation recognized on that
porticon of the assets acquired or constructed from such resources. This
depreciation is closed to the contributed capital account and is reflected as
an adjustment to net income.

Ragerveas

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for
expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use,

Designated Fund Balances

Designated fund balances represent tentative plan for future use of financial
resources,

Interfund Transacticons

Ouasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenueg, exXpenditures, oY
exXpenses. Transactions that constitute reiwmbursements to a fund forx
expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to
another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and
as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except guasi-external transactions and
reimbursements, are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent
transfers of eguity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other
interfund transferg of the primary government are reported as operating
transfers.

Saleg and Use Taxeg

1. The original 1966 1% sales and use tax passed by the voters is to be used
for extending, acquiring, maintaining, constructing, and improving drainage,
streets, sidewalks, public buildings, fire department stationg and
equipment, garbage collection equipmeéent and facilities, and the payment of
salaries of certain municipal employees. There 1s no explration date on
this sales and use tax.

2. The additional 1982 1% salegs and use tax passed by the voters 1s to be used
for extending, acguiring, maintalning, constructing, and improving sewers
and sewer facilities, waterworks facilities, drainage and drain facilaties,
and for any other lawful corporate purpose of the City. There 18 no
expiration date on this sales and use tax.

The City, through its governing authority, adopted a resolution on February 9,

1995, autheorizing the issuance of $§1,725,000 of Public Improvement Bonds ang
entered into certain covenants in connection with the security and payment of
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said bonds. In that resgsolution the proceeds of the 1982 1% sales and use tax
were 1irrevocably and irrepealably pledged and dedicated in an amount sufficient
for payment of the bonds authorized and interest as they become due and for
other purposes.

Q. Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior vyear have been presented in the
accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of
changes in the City's financial position and operations.

R. Total Columng on Combined Statements - Overview

Total columns on the Combined Statements - Overview are captioned Memorandum
Only to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis.
Data 1n these columns do not present financial position, results of operations,
or cash flows 1n conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Neither is such data comparable to a congoeolidation. Interfund eliminations have
not been made in the aggregation of this data.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintalins a cash investment pool (Central Depository Account) that 1s used
primarily by the General Fund and the Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds. Each fund's
portion of this cash poocl 1s displayed on the combined balance sheet as cash.
Investments are separately held by several of the City’s funds.

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest bearing demand deposits, and money
market accounts. Under state law, the City may deposit funds in demand deposits,
interest bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state
banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices
in Louisiana.

Under state law, the City may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, oOr
certificates. These are clasgsified as investments 1i1f their original maturities
exceed 90 days; however, if the original maturities are 90 days or less, they are
clasgified as cash eguiaivalents. Investments are stated at cost.

Investments at June 30, 1999 are 1in the Loulsiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a
local government investment pool. In accordance with GASB Codification Section
150.165, the investment in LAMP ig not categorized 1in the three risk categories
provided by GASB Codification Section 150.164 because the Investment is in the pool
of funds and thereby not evidenced by securities that exist 1n physical or book entry
form. LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc¢., a nonprofit corporation organized under
the laws of the State of Louisiana, and i1s governed by a board of directors comprised
of representatives from various 1local governments and state wide professional
organizations. Only local governments having contracted to participate in LAMP have
an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to
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provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high
gquality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other
cbhligations in which local governments in Louigjiana are authorized to invest.
Accordingly, LAMP investments are restricted to securities issued, guaranteed, or
backed by the U.S8. Treasury, the U.S. government, or one of its agencies,
enterprises, or instrumentalities, as well as repurchase agreements collateralized
by those securities. The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets
1s restricted to not more than 90 days. LAMP is designed to be highly ligquid to give
1ts participants 1mmediate access to their account balances.

As rveflected on Exhibit A, the City has cash totaling $1,212,042 and investments
totaling $1,748,946 at June 30, 199%99. Under state law, these deposits must be
secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the bank.
These pledged securities are held by and in the name of the fiscal agent bank but
pledged to the City. The following is a summary of cash and investments (bank
balances) at June 30, 1992, with the related federal deposit insurance and pledge
securities:

Confirmed
Bank Balances FDIC Balance
June 3¢, 1999 Insurance Uninsured _
Cash:
Demand Deposits G - S - S -
Interest Bearing Demand
Deposits 1,276,724 100,000 1,176,724
Time Deposits - - .
Total Cash 5 1,276,724 S 100,000 S 1,176,724
Time Deposits 5 158,322 S 100,000 5 L8, 322
U.S. Treasury Rills 165,410 165,410 ~
Invegstments:
LAMP 1,425,214 - - -
Total $ 1,748,946 $ 265,410 $ 1,235,046
Uncollateralized -
Securities in the Name of and
Held by the Fiscal Agent Pledged to the City 1,379,703

Excess of FDIC Insurance and Pledged Securities
overy Cash and Investment Bank Balances 5 144,657

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollaterized {(Category 3) under
the provisions of GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a
statutory reguirement on the custedial bank to advertise and sell the pledged
securities within 10 days of being notified by the District that the fiscal agent has
failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.
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AD VALOREM TAXES

The 1974 Louigiana Constitution (Articie 7 Section 18) provided that land and
improvements for residential purposes be assessed at 10% of fair market wvalue; other
property and electric cooperative properties, excluding land, are toc be assessed at
15%; and public service properties, excluding land , are to be agsessed at 25% of
fair market value. Failr market value 1s determined by the Tangipahoa Parish Assessor
on all property subiject to taxation except public service propertiegs, which are
valued by the Louisiana Tax Commission (LRS 47:1957). The correctness of assessments
by the asgsessgor 1is subject to review and certification by the Louisiana Tax
Commission. The assessor is required to reapprailise all property subject to taxation
at intervals of not more than four vyears, The City bills and collects its own
property taxes using the assessed values determined by the Tangipahoa Parish Tax
Aggsesgor.,

The 1998 property tax calendar i1s as follows:

Levy Date June 12, 1958
Millage Rates Adopted June 12, 1998

Tax Bills Mailed December 1, 1998
Due Date December 31, 1598
Lien Date January 1, 1989

State law reguires the (City to collect property taxes in the calendar year in which
the assessment is made. Property taxes become delinguent January 1, of the following
vear. If taxes are not paid by the due date, taxeg bear interest at the rate of one
and one-fourth percent per month until the taxes are paid (LRS 47:2101) . After
notice is given to the delinguent taxpayers, the Sheriff i1s regquired by the
Constitution of the State of Louisiana to sell the least guantity of property
necessary to settle the taxes and interegt owed (LRS 47:2181). Therefore, there are
no delingquent taxes at year-end.

All property taxes are recorded in governmental funds, and as explained in Note 1{c},
revenues in governmental funds are recognized in the accounting period in which they
become available and measurable. Property taxes are consgsidered measurable in the
calendar vear of the tax levy. Accordingly, the entire tax roll legs an estimate for
uncollectible taxes i1is recorded as revenue 1i1n the current calendar vear,
Uncollectible taxes are those taxes which based on past experience will not be
collected in the subsequent year and are primarily due to subseguent adjustments to
the tax rell., 2All of the net taxes receivable at the end of the year are considered
avallable, Available means due, or past due and receivable within the current
period, and collected within the current period or expected to be ceollected soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Property taxes are
considered avallable because they are substantially collected by the tax collector
within 60 days subseguent to vear-end and are therefore available to ligquidate
liabilities of the current period.
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For the vear ended June 30,

1999,

{CONTINUED)

1995

taxes of 16.99 mills were levied on property with

taxable assessed valuations totaling $17,740,978 and were dedicated as follows:

General Corporate Purposes

Fire Millage Fund

Police Millage Fund

Equipment Millage Fund
Total

recelvable
of June 30,

Property taxes

Ponchatoula as 1999,

General Fund

Fire Millage Fund
Police Millage Fund
Equipment Millage Fund

The following are the principal taxpayers for the municipality:

Taxpayeyr
Elmer Candy Corporation

BellSouth Telecommunications
DCA Food Industries

Gateway Ford, Inc.

Ponchatoula Homestead Savings
Deposit Guaranty National Bank
First Guaranty Bank

Winn Dixie of Louisiana
Ponchatoula Nursing Home

Alton Ochsner

RECEIVABLES

Authorized Levied Levied Expiration
Millage Millage Taxes Date
6.52 6.52 $115,671 None
2.10 2.10 37,256 1059
6.27 6,27 111,236 1999
2.10 2.10 37,256 1955
16,99 16 .99 $301,419
and estimated uncollectible taxes for the City of
are as follows:
Estimated Net
Property Uncollectible Property
Tax Property Taxes
Receivable Taxes Receivable
S B,936 S 7,698 S 1,238
418 418 =
1,247 1,247 ~
418 418 -
$11,019 5_9.,781 S_1,238
Percentage
Of Total
Assessed Assessed
Type of Businessg Valuation Valuation
Manufacturing S 871,289 4.91%
Utility 611, 582 3.45%
Retail 415,178 2.34%
Retail 381,533 2.15%
Banking 417,154 2.35%
Banking 361,550 2.04%
Banking 314,267 1.77%
Retail 242,942 1.37%
Retail 228,944 1.29%
Medical Clinaic 244,498 _1.38%
$4,088,937 23.05%
19992, net of allowances for

The following is a summary of receivables for June 30,
uncollectible amounts where applicable:

25




City of Ponchatoula

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 1995

Special
General Revenue Proprietary Other
Class of Receivable ___Fund_ Funds Funds Fun
Taxes :
Ad Valorem $ 1,238 § - S - 5 -
Salegs and Use - 132,878 - -
Cther 24,874 - ~ -
Intergovernmental - Grants:
Federal - - -
State 27,571 ~ - -
Local - ~ ~ ~
Other:
Accounts 18,175 - 58,265 -
Notes - 230,200 - -
Other - - - 2,486
Total $71,858 $363,078 $ 58,265 $ 2,486

Uncollectible amounts due for ad valorem taxes, notes receivable and customers’
utility receivables are recognized as bad debts through the establishment of an
allowance account at the time information becomes availlable which would 1ndicate the
uncollectibility of the particular receivable. The following detaills the description
and amount of the allowance for uncollectible accounts at June 30, 1999.

Special
General Revenue Proprietary Other
Class of Receivable Fund Funds Funds Funds
Taxes
Agd Valoremn S 7,698 S 2,083 S - S -
Sales and Use - - -
Other - - - -
Intergovernmental - Grants:
Federal - - - -
State - - - -
Local - - - ~
Other:
Accounts - - 26,400 -
Notes - 11,261 - -
Other ~ - ~ o
Total $_7,689 $_13,.344 $._26,400 B s

5. FEDERAL, STATE AND OTHER GOVERNMENTS FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

A. Grants and Direct Financial Assisgtance from Other Governmental Units

Federal and State grant programs repregent an important scource of funding to
finance housing, employment, construction, and social programs which are
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beneficial to the City. These funds arve recorded in the General, Special
Revenue, Capital Projects, and Enterprise Punds. Receivables are egtablished
when expenditures are incurred. The grants normally specify the purpose for

which funds may be used and are audited annually in accordance with Office of
Management and Budget Cilrcular A-133 under the "“Single Audit Concept”, when
applicable.

For the year ended June 30, 1999, the following amounts under various grants ang
entitlements are recorded as revenuesg, subsidies, or additions to contributions
in the accompanying financial statements:

Special
General Revenue Enterprise
Frunag Funds Funds Total
Federal Government:
FY 19S¢ LCDBG -

Sewey Improvetents S - S - 5265,8B25 S265,825
Revenue Egualization - Pilot 7,500 - - 7,500
FY 1991 LCDBG Economic

Development - 30,774 ~ 30,774
FY 1997 LCDBG Economic

Development - 14,675 - 14,675
Council on Aging Grant 108,737 - - 108, 737

116,237 45,445 265,825 427 .511
State of Louisiana:
Beer and Tobacco Taxes 45,898 - - 45,898
Video Draw Poker Tax 44,477 - - 44,477
COPS Grant 33,973 - - 33,873
Law Enforcement Grant 32,5846 1,103 - 34,049
157,294 1,103 - 1 397
Tangipahoa Parish Council:
Fire Insurance Fee 11,497 - - 11,4987
11,497 - R 11,497
Tangipahoa Parish Fire
District No. 2:
Fire Protection Grant 50,000 - - 50,000
50,000 - - 50,000
$335.,028 $_ 46,552 $265.825 $647.405

On-Behalf Payments for Salaries and Benefits

During 1998 the City implemented GASB Statements No. 24, Accounting and
Financial Reportling for Certain Grants and COther Financial Assistance. This
standard requires the City to report in the financial statements on-behalf
salary and fringe benefit payments made by the State of Louisiana to certain
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groupg of City employees.

Supplementary salary payments are made by the state directly to certain groups
of emplovyees. The City is not legally responsible for these salaries.
Therefore, the basis for recognizing the revenue and expenditure {expense)
payments 1is the actual contribution made by the state. For 1999, the state paid
supplemental salaries to the following groups of employees of the City: fire and
law enforcement emplovees.

On-behalf payments recorded as revenues and expendiltures {expenses) in the 1999
financial statements are as follows:

State
Supplemental
Salariesg
General Fund:
Policeman Supplemental Pay 542,600
Fireman Supplemental Pay 25,200
Total On-Behalf Payments S67,800

The City is required to pay from its own budget the payroll taxes and retirement
contributions on these on-behalf payments.

6. FIXED ASSETS

4., A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:
BALANCE BALANCE
ODULY 31, 31998 ADDITIONS DELETIONS TRANSFERS June 30, 13595
Land 4 281,748 & - 4 - & - $ 281,748
Buildings 2,143,513 10,165 - - 2,153,678
Improvements Other
Than Buildings 3,893,225 - - ~ 3,893,225
Eguipment _841.153 196, 796 - 3 1,037,949
Total General
Fixed Assets $7,159,639 $206,961 $__ - g . 57,366,600
B. A summary of enterprise funds property, piant and eguapment at June 30, 1999,

is ags follows:

Water Sewer
Pund L Fund Total
Water and Sewer Utility:
Buildings S 8,000 S 33,908 3 41,908
Water Wells, Lines, and Tower 2,414,784 ~ 2,434,784
Sewer Lines - 3,897,213 3,897,213
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Equipment and Vehicles 108,973 134,598 243,571
Wastewater Treatment Plant - 2,299,454 2,299,454
Total 52,531,757 $6,365,173 S8,896,930
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 698,703 1,385,900 2,084,603
$1,833,054 &4,979,273 $6,812,327
Land 89 253 3,170 92,423
Construction i1n Progress - - -
Net $1,922.307 44,982,443 $6,904, 750

Depreciation expense on the proprietary fund type property, plant and eqguipment for
the year ended June 30, 1999, totaled $206,3%89,

EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN

The City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana, provides pension benefits for all of its full-
time employees thyough a joint contributory, defined contribution plan in the state-
wide Loulsiana Municipal Ewmployees' Retirement System (MERS). The Municaipal
Employees' Retirement System, State of ILouisiana, is the administrator of a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer plan.

The Municipal Employees’ Retirement System, State of Louisiana was established by Act
356 of the 1954 regular session of the Legislature of the State of Louisiana, to
provide retirement benefits to employees of all incorporated villages, towns and
cities within the state, which did not have their own retirement system and which
elected to become members of the System.

The System ig administered by a Board of Trusteeg composed of nine members, six of
whom shall be active and contributing members of the System with at least ten years
creditable sgervice, elected by the members ¢of the System; one of whom shall he the
president of the Louigiana Munjicipal Association who shall serve as an ex-officio
member during hig tenure; one of whom shall be the Chairman of the Senate Retirement
Committee; and one of whom shall be the Chairman of the House Retirement Committee
of the lLegislature of Louisiana,

Act #5629 of the year 1968 established by the Legislature of the State of Louisilana
provides an optional method for municipalities to cancel Social Security and come
undey supplementary benefits in the Municipal Employees! Retirement System, effective
onn and after June 30, 1970,

Effective Octecber 1, 1978, under Act #788, the "regular plan" and the "supplemental
plan” were replaced, and are now know as Plan "A" and Plan "B". Plan A combines the
original plan and the supplemental plan for those municipalities participating in
both plans, while Plan B participates in only the original plan. The City elected
to become members of the System on June 27, 1966, and are members of Plan B. There
are presently 65 contributing municipalities in Plan A and 56 in Plan B. The City
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of Ponchatoula is a member of Plan B.

Membership i1s mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date employed
if the employee is on a permanent basilis working at least thirty-five hours per week,
not participating in another public funded retirement system and under age sixty (60)
at date of employment. Those individuals paid jJointly by a participating employer
and the parish are not eligible for membership i1n the System,

Any member of Plan B can retire providing he meets one of the following criteria:

A . Age 55 with thirty (30) years of creditable service.

B. Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) or more yvears of creditable service.

C. Under age 60 with ten (10) years of creditable service eligible for disability
benelfits.

D. survivor's benefits reguire twenty (20) vyears creditable service at death of
member .

Generally, the meonthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B
shall consist of an amount equal to two percent of the member's final compensation
multiplied by hig years of creditable service. However, under certain conditions as
outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. A member
is vested after ten (10) vears, but he must leave his accumulated contributions in
the plan until retirement. If a member withdraws his own money, he is not entitled
to the employer-financed monetary credits, even 1f he was vested. The plan
provigions are adopted by the governing body of the entities, within the options
available in the state statutes governing MERS and within the actuarial constraints
also 1n the statutes.

The contribution rate for employees 1is 5.00% of earnable compensation and is
established by state statute.

The employer contribution rate is 3.75% of members earnings. The System also
receives 1/4 of 1% of ad valorem taxes collected within the respective parishes
except for Orleans. Tax monies are apportioned between Plan A and Plan B in
proportion to salaries of plan participants. The System algo receives revenue
sharing funds each year as appropriated by the Legislature. These additional sources
of income are usged as additional employer contributions. The remaining employer
contributions are determined according bto ac¢tuarial regquirements and are set
arnnually.

The City’s total payroll in the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992 was $1,202,4920, and
the City’s contributiong were based on a payroll of $1,134,6%22. Both the City and
the covered employees made the reguired contributions, amcunting to $89,286. There
were no related party transactions.
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Trend Information

Contributions reguired by gtate statute:

Fiscal
Year Required Perceéentage
June 30 Contribution Contribution
19597 S74,479 100%
1998 74,130 100%
1869 599,286 100%

The System issues an annual publicly availalkle financial report that includes
financial statements and reguired supplementary information for the System. That
report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of
Louigiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling
(225)825-4810.

All employees of the City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana are also members of the Social
Security System.

ACCOUNTS, SALARIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is a summary ©f payables at June 30, 1599:

Special Debt Capital

General Revenue Service  Projects  Proprietary

Class of Payable Fund Funds _Fundg Funds Funds

Salaries 5 - 5 ~ $ - 5 ~ S ~

Withholdings 4,985 s - - -
Locount s 6,008 2,340 - - 16,054
Othey 14,52 227,767 - - 68,944
Total $_ 86,118 $230,107 5 - S - $_84,998

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

At June 30, 1999, emplovees of the City of Ponchatoula have accumulated and vested
$14,52% of employee leave benefits, which wag computed in accordance with GASE
Codification Section C60. Of this amount, $14,525 1s recorded as an obligation of
the General Fund, and $0.00 is recorded within the general long-term obligations
account group. The leave liability for employees of the Enterprise Fund, for $0.00,
is accounted for within the fund.

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The City of Ponchatoula records items under capital leases ag an asset and obligation
in the accompanying financial statements.
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The following 1s a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases,
with the present value of the net minimum lease payments, as of June 30, 1999:

Vehicles Tractor Backhoe Total

Figcal Year:

6/30/00 $29,784 S 1,271 $10,200 $41,265

6/30/01 14,011 - 850 14,861

6/30/02 7,005 - - 7,005

Total minimum lease payments S50, 800 $ 1,271 511, 050 $63,121
Less amount representing interesgt (3.568) __(.12) ( 529) (4,1089)
Present value of minimum lease payments $47,232 51,259 $10,521 659,012

11. CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of the long-term obligations transactions for the City of
Ponchatoula for the year ended June 30, 1929:

BALANCE LEASES OR BONDS RETIRED BALANCE
JULY 1, BONDS AND OTHER JUNE 30,
1698 ISSUED REDUCTIONS 1999
Capaital Lease
Obligations 5 61,673 S 59,048 8 61,709 5 59,012
Public Improvement
Sales Tax Bonds 1,385,000 - 100,000 1,285,000
Certificate of
Indebtedness 22,500 750,000 15,000 757,500
S5ewer Revenue
Bonds 1,893,824 - 898,824 1,795,000
$3,363,087 $_809,048 S275,633 $3,896,512

General obligation bonds, revenue bonds, certificates of indebtedness, et cetera, are
comprised of the fellowing individual issues:

Capital Lease Obligations:
539,365 Capital lLease Obligation
Payable To Ford Motor Credit
Dated 2/3/99; Due 1in 6 annual install-
ments of §$7,005.47; With Interest
at 5.40% (Payable from a pledge of the
excess revenues of the general fund) S 32,360

$19,683 Capital Lease Obligation
Payable To Ford Mcotor Credit
Dated 2/17/99; Due in 2 annual install-
ments of 510,125.62; With Interest
at 5.95% (Pavable from a pledge of the
Excegss revenues of the general fund) 9,557
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514,021 Capital Lease Obligation
Pavable To Case Credit Corporation
Dated 10/01/96; Due in 36 monthly install-
ments of $§423.84; With Interest

at 5.90% (Payable from a pledge of the excess
Revenues o©of the general fund)

1,258

$15,965 Capital Lease Obligation

Payable to Ford Motor Credit

Dated 06/16/98; Due in 2 installments

Of $5,647.35; With Interest at 6.250%

(Payvable from a pledge ©of the excess

Revenues ©f the general fund) 5,315
$22,900 Capital Lease Obligation

Payable to Philip A. Monteleone

Dated 01-15-98; Due 1in 30 monthly installments

Of $850.00; With Interest at 8.50% (Pavable

From a pledge of the excess revenues of the

General fund) 10,521

Total Capital Lease Obligations S 5 12

Certificate of Indebtedness:

$150,000 Certificate of Indebtedness
dated December 30, 1995; Due in Annual
Installments of $20,600 - $24,5008 through
Decembery 30, 1997; With Interest at 6.00%
(Pavable from a pledge of the excess
Revenues of the general fund) & 7,500
S750,000 Certificate of Indebtedness
dated October 21, 1998; Due in Annual
Installments of 560,000 - §$90,000 through
September 1, 2008; Interest at 5.20%
(Payable from a pledge of the excess

Revenues of the General Fundg) S 75 0

Total Certificates of Indebtedness S 757,500

Public Improvement Bonds:

$1,725,000 Public Improvement Bondg Dated
March 1, 19295;:; Due in Annual Installmentsg
of $75,000 - $160,000 through March 1,
2009; Interest at 4.10% - 2.00% (Pavable

from a Pledge of the City's 1982 1% Saleyg
and Use Tax)
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Sewer Revenue Bonds:
$2,400,000 Series 1991 Sewer Revenue Bonds
due in Annual Installments of $75,000 to
$140,000 through March 1, 2012; Interest
Rate is 4.45% Plus an Administrative
Charge of 0.50% for a Comblned Rate of
4.95%, (Payable from a pledge of the

City’s Sewer revenues.) $1,795, 000

at June 30, 1999, the (City of Ponc¢hatoula has accumulated $233,049 and $488,637, in
the debt service funds for future debt requirements for the Public Improvement Bonds

and the Sewer Revenue Bonds, respectively. The annual requirements to amortize all
bonds and/or certificates outstanding at June 30, 19929, including interest of
$1,252,60% i1s as follows:
SEWER CAPITAL CERTIFICATE PUBLIC
YEAR ENDED REVENUE LEASE OF IMPROVEMENT
JUNE 30, BONDS OBLIGATIONS INDEBTEDNESS BONDS TQTAL
2000 S 193,853 S 41,255 S 105,165 S 166,210 506,483
2001 123,655 14,861 89,1820 166,905 474,611
2002 193,210 7,005 95,810 162,230 458,255
2003 192,518 - 87,300 167,320 457,208
2004 191,578 - 98,530 166,750 456,858
Z2005-2008 1,498,932 - - 470,770 826,000 2,185,702
52,463,746 $ 63,122 S 966, 765 $1,655,485 5 5,149,117
Interest Portion {668 ,748) f4.,109) {209,265} (370,485) [(1,252,605)
$1,795, 000 $ 59,012 $_757,500 $1,285,000 $_ 3,896,512
DEDICATION OF PROCEEDS AND FLOW OF FUNDS - SALES AND USE TaX
Proceeds of the 2% sales and use tax levied by the City of Ponchatoula (1999
ceollections - {$1,562,962) are dedicated to the following purposes:
The bond resolution requires that the proceeds of the special one percent {(1%) sales

and use tax now being levied and collected by the ity is to be deposited with the
City's fiscal agent bank in a 1882 Sales Tax Fund. After the payment of all
reasonable and necessary costs and expenses of collecting the tax, c¢ertain monthly
payments must be made from the 1982 Sales Tax Fund to the Series 8T-1995% Public
Improvement Bond Sinking Fund and the Series ST-1995 Public Improvement Bongd Reserve:
Fund, which must be established with the City's fiscal agent bank. The payments into
the sinking fund are made in amounts sufficient to pay the principal and interest
installments currently and will continue monthly until March 2002, unlese bonds are
called in advance of their wmaturity dates, in which event it is possible to reduce
the regquired payments into the sinking fund. Payments into the Reserve Fund will be
made by tCransferring simultaneously upon delivery of the Bonds from the proceeds
therect an amount equal to the Reserve Fund Requirement. The money in the Regerve
Fund 1s retained solely for the purpose of paying the principal and interest on the
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Bonds payable from the Sinking Fund, as to which there would otherwise he default.

Any meonies remaining in the Sales Tax Fund on the 20th day of each month after making
the reguired payments into the Series ST-1895 Public Improvement Bond Sinking Fund
for the current month and for prior months during which the required payments may not
have been made, 1s considered as surplus.

Such surplus may be used by the City for any of the purpoges for which the imposition
of the tax is authorized or for the purpose of retiring bonds herein authorized in
advance of their maturities.

Balances in the Series 8T7-1995 Public¢ Improvement Bond Sinking Fund angd Serieg ST-
1995 Public Improvement Bond Reserve Fund at June 30, 1999, were 1n accordance with
the bond covenants.

COMPLIANCE WITH SALES TAX BOND COVERANTS

The City, through its governing authority, adopted a resolution on February 9, 1995,
authorizing the issuance of Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1995, in an amount not to exceed

$1,725,000 for public iwmprovements in the City. That bond resolution contained
certain covenants and agreements in connection with the security and payment of the
bonds. The major covenants contained in the bond resolution and the manner in which

the City has couplied with thesgse covenants 1is described as follows:

Records and Accounts and Audit Reguirements - In the bond resclution the City is
required to maintain and keep accurate records and accounts for the Sales Tax Bondgs
separate and distinct from its other records and accounts. These Sales Tax Bond
records shall be maintained 1n accordance with generally accepted government
accounting standards and shall be audited annually by an independent certified public
accountant.

As of June 30, 1999, the City was in compliance with this bond covenant as the City
has established all required funds and was under contract with a certified public
accountant for an audit of itg records for the vear ended June 30, 1989.

Insurance and_Fidelity Bonds - In the bond resolution, the City 1s required to
maintain fidelity bonds on all employees in a poesition of authority or in possession
of money derived from the sales tax.

As of June 30, 1999, the City was in compliance with this bond covenant.

Other Reguirements - The bond resolution contains additional covenants regarding
cellection of tax, legal right to collection of tax, and other miscellaneous
provisions.

As of June 30, 1999, the City was in compliance with these other bond covenants in
all material regpects.
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DEDICATION OF PROCEEDS AND FLOW OF FUNDS - SEWER REVENUES

The City, through its governing authority, adopted a resoluticn on August 14, 1991,
authorizing the issuance of Sewer Revenue Bonds, Seriles 1991, in an amount not to
exceed $2,400,000 for acguiring and construction of wastewater treatment facilities.
The resolution also authorized the execution of a Loan and Pledge Agreement with the
l.ouisiana Department of Environmental Quality providing for the sale and delivery of
said bonds to the Department of Environmental Quality; prescribing the form, fixing
the details and providing for the payment of principal and interest on such bonds and
entering into certain covenants and agreements in connection with the security and
payment of said bonds. In that resolution and the Lean and Pledge Agreement, the
revenues of the Sewer System are irrevocably and irrepealably pledged and dedicated
in an amount sufficient for payment of the bonds authorized and interest as they
become due and for other purpoOses. In that resolution and the Loan and Pledge
Agreement, certain funds were required to be established to account for the receipt
and disbursement of Sewer System revenues. An analysis of these accounts is provided
as follows:

Revenue Fund - The bond resclution and the Loan and Pledge Agreement reguire that all
revenues of the Sewer System shall be deposited daily in a separately identifiable
account to be established with the City's fiscal agent bank and designated as the
"Revenue Fund”. The revenues deposited into the Sewer Revenue Fund shall be expended
in the following priority:

Operation and Maintenance Fund - From the Revenue Fund, the City shall pay all
reasonable and necessary cogsts and expenses of operating and maintaining the Sewer
System. The City presently uses the cash pool identified as the Central Depository
Account to account for all costs and expenses ¢of maintaining the Sewer System.

Transfers are made from the Revenue Fund to the Central Depository Account in amounts
sufficient to cover the costs and expenseg of maintaining the Sewer System.

Sinking Fund - After the payment of all reasonable and necessary costs and expenses
of maintaining the Sewer System, monies from theée Revenue Fund shall be transferred
to a separately identifiable account to be established with the City's fiscal agent
bank and designated as the "Sinking Fund® in amounts sufficient to pay promptly and
fully the principal of and interest on the bonds as they severally become due and
payable.

Monies from the Revenue Fund shall be transferred into the Sinking Fund monthly in
advance on or before the twentieth (20th} day of each month of each year as follows:

(1) during the Interim Loan Period, an amount equal to the interest
estimated to accrue with respect to the Borrower Bonds for such

calendar month based on the Estimated Maximum Draw Schedule, and

(i1) during the Permanent Loan Period, an amount equal to the principal
and interest accruing with respect to the Borrower Bonds for such
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calendar month.

The payments will continue monthly until March, 2012, unless the bonds are called in
advance of their maturity dates, in which event it is possible to reduce the required
payments into the sinking fund.

Reserve Fungd - From the Revenue Fund, there shall be transferred monthly in advance
on or before the twentieth (20th) day of each month of each vear, to a separately
identifiable account to be established with the City's fiscal agent bank and
designated as the "Reserve Fund" a sum at least equal to 25% of the amount required
to be paid into the Sinking Fund for such month until such fund accumulates an amount
equal to the scheduled maximum principal and interest requirements in any succeeding
bond vyear.

Money in the Reserve Fund 1s to be retained solely for the purpose of payment of the
principal of and interest on all obligations payable from the Sinking Fund for which
sufficient funds are not on deposit in the Sinking Fund and as to which there would
otherwige be default.

Renewal and_ Replacéement Fund - From the Revenue Fund, there shall be transferred
monthly on or before the twentieth {20th) day of each month of each year to a
separately identifiable account to be established with the City's fiscal agent bank
and designated as the "Renewal and Replacement Fund" an amount equal to five percent
(5%) of the Net Revenues o©l the Sewer System collected in the prior calendar month
until such fund accumulates $50,000. All monies in the Renewal and Replacement Fund
may be used for the purpose of paying the costs of any unusual and extraordinary
maintenance and any repairs, replacements, extensions and improvements to the Sewer
System. Money accumulated in this fund may also bhe used to pay principal and
interest on the bonds falling due at any time there is not sufficient woney for
payment in the $inking Fund or the Reserve Fung.

Construction Fund - All proceeds of the loan shall be deposited in a separately
identifiable account with the City's fiscal agent bank designated the "“"Construction
Fund" and used sclely for the purpose of paying the costs of the project.

All monies remaining in the Revenue Fund after all required depesits into the bond
funds described herein shall be considered surplus and may be used for the purpose
of retiring bonds in advance of their maturity or for any other lawful purpose.

As of June 30, 1999, balances in the 8Sinking Fund, Reserve Fund, and Renewal and
Replacement Fund were 1in accordance with the bond covenants.

COMPLIANCE WITH SEWER REVENUE BOND COVENANTS

The City, through its governing authoraity, adopted a resolution on August 14, 1991,
aunthorizing the issuance of Sewer Revenue Bonds, Seriesg 1991, in an amount not to
exceed $2,400,000 for acguiring and construction of wastewater treatment facilities
and authorized the execution of a Loan and Pledge Agreement with the Louisiana

37




City of Ponchatoula

|

NOTES TO FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 1999

Department of Environmental Quality. That bond resolution and agreement contained
certain covenants and agreements in connection with the security and payment of the
honds. The major covenants contained in the bond resolution and agreement and the
manney in which the City has complied with these covenants is described as follows:

Rate Covenant - In the bond resolution, the City covenants to fix, establish,
maintain and collect such rates, fees, rents and other c¢harges ¢f the services and
facilities of the Sewer System and to revise Lhe rates whenever necessary as wild
always provide revenues in each fiscal year sufficient to pay (i) the reasonable and
necessary expenses of operating the System, (ii) one hundred twenty-five percent
(125%) of the required deposgits to the Sinking Fund for such fiscal year, (iii) all
other payments required for such fiscal year by the bond resolution and loan
agreement, and (iv) all other obligations ©r indebtedness payable out of the revenues
for such fiscal vyear. In connection therewith, the City adopted Ordinance NoO. 422
on June 26, 1991, which established sewer user classifications, set specific sewer
rates and provided a detailed procedure for annual review and adjustment of sewer
rates.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, operating receipts for the sewer fund
totaled $556,147. For the same period operating disbursements including required
deposits into the various debt service funds totaled $563,014. The City was 1in
compliance with the rate covenant for the year ended June 30, 1989,

1n connection with the rate covenant, the bond resolution also contalned specific
procedures with regards to delinguent sewer customers. The City agreed that the
failure of any person to pay the charges for any service rendered by the Sewer System
within thirty (30) days of the date on which it is due shall cause such charge to
become delinquent and a delinguent charge of ten percent (10%) of the delinquent
amount shall be assessed. If a delinquent account is not paid within thirty (30)
days of the date of delinguency, the City will shut off water and sewer services to
the affected premises. All delinguent accounts shall bear interest at the rate of
six percent (6%) per annum.

At June 30, 1999, the City was not in compliance with this bond covenant because the
City only charges a delinguent fee of $1.00 on accounts not paid by the fifteenth day
in each month. The City alsc does not charge interest at 6% per annum on delinquent
accounts. However, this is because the City's present computerized billing system
does not provide for the calculation of i1nterest.

annual Review of User Fees - In the Loan and Pledge Agreement, the City is required
to review at least annually the adegquacy of its Sewer User Fees to satisfy the
requirements of the rate covenant and to prepare a report of such review stating the
City's opinion regarding the adequacy or inadequacy of the existing user fees,
Detailed procedures for the annual review and adjustment of sewer rates 1is contained
in Ordinance No. 422.

at June 30, 1999, a review of the City's sewer user fees had been performed and the
City was in compliance with thig bond covenant.
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Records and Agcounts and Audit Requirements - In the bond resolution the City is
required to maintain and keep accurate records and accounts for the Sewer System
separate and distinct from its other records and accounts, These Sewer System
records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted government
accounting standards and shall be audited annually by an independent certified public
accountant.

As of June 30, 1899, the City was in compliance with this bond covenant as the City
was under contract with a certified public accountant for an audit of its records for
the year ended June 30, 1999.

Insurance and Fidelity Bonds - In the Loan and Pledge Agreement, the City is reguiregd
to maintain full coverage of insurance on the System. The City is also required to
obtain fidelity bonds on all employees in a position of authority or in possession
of money derived from the operation of the System.

Ag of June 30, 1999, the City was in compliance with thig bond covenant.

Other Reguirements - The bond resolution and the Loan and Pledge Agreement contain
additional covenants regarding utilization of funds, appointment of engineer and
other miscellaneous provisions.

As of June 30, 1999, the City was in compliance with these other bond covenants in
all material respects.

COMPLIANCE WITH CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS COVENANTS

The Caty, through its governing authority, adopted Ordinance Number 510 on July 23,
1998, authorizing the issuance of Certificates of Indebtednesgs, Series 1998, in an
amount not to exceed $750,000 for public improvements in the City. That ordinance
contained certain covenants and agreements in connection with the securlty and
payment of the certificates. The major covenants contained in the ordinance and the
manner in which the City has complied with these covenants is described as follows:

Audit Reguirewents - In the ordinance the City is reguired to cause an audit of its
records and accounts to be made not later than three (3) months after the close of
each fiscal vear.

As of June 30, 1999, the (City was in compliance with this ordinance covenant as it
was under contract with a certified public accountant for an audit of its records for
the year ended June 30, 1999,

Sinking Fund - In the ordinance the City is required to create a special fund to be
known as "City of Ponchatoula, State of Louisiana, Certificates of Indebtedness,
Series 1998, Sinking Fund®’ to be used for payment of the principal of and the
interest on the certificates. The City is reguired to deposit in the Sinking Fund
at least three (3) days in advance of each interest payment date, funds fully
sufficient to promptly pay the maturing principal and/or interest so falling due on
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auch date.

As of June 30, 1999, the City was not in compliance with this ordinance covenant as
it did not establish the required Sinking Fund.

Other Reguirements - The ordinance contains additional covenants regarding collection
of tax, legal right to collection of tax, and other miscellaneous provisions.

s of June 30, 1999, the City was in compliance with these other ordinance covenants
in all material respects.

INTERFUND ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

DUE FROM DUE TOQ
General Fund:
Sewey Enterprise Fund S - S 4,886
Water Enterprise Fund - 9,600
Sclid Waste Collection Fund 8,804 -
FY 1995 Capital Projects Fund D, 332 -
Total General Fund 514,136 514,486
Special Revenue Funds:
General Fund S - S 8,804
Total Special Revenue Funds S - 5 B,804
Water Enterprise Fund:
General Fund 5 9,600 4 -
Sewer Enterprise Fund 14,932 -
Total Water Enterprise Fund 524,532 S
Sewer Enterprise PFund:
General Fund S 4,886 s -
Water Enterprigse Fund - 14,332
Total Sewer Enterprise Fund S_4,886 $14,932
Capital Projects Fund:
General Fund S_ - $_5,332
Total Capital Projects Fund S__ - S_5,332
Total All Funds $43,554 543,554

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

The following is a summary of the operating transfers between funds during the fiscal
vear ended June 30, 1999:

40




City of Ponchatoula

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 1999

TRANSFER IN TRANSFER OUT
_FROM TO
General Fund;
1965 Sales Tax Fund S 694,333 5 -
1982 Sales Tax Fund 534,832 -
Debt Service - -
Water Enterprise Fund 2,935 -
Sewer Enterprise Fund - _ -
Total General Fund $1,232,100 S —
Special Revenue PFunds:
General Fund S - $1,229,165
1995 Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund 13,050 168, 967
FY 1993 Capital Projects Fund - ~
Total Special Revenue Funds S 13,050 $1,3%98,132
Debt Service Funds:
General Fund 5 - S ~
1982 Sales Tax Fund 168, 967 13,050
19295 Capital Projects Fund - -
Total Debt Servigce Funds S 168,967 5 13,050

Capital Projects Funds:
FY 1982 Sales Tax Fund & - 4 -
FY 1965 Sales Tax Fund - -
Water Enterprise Fund - -
Emergency Housing Rehab Fund - -
Total Capital Projects Funds 5 - 5 -

Proprietary Funds:
General Fund S - S 2,935
1993 Capital Projects Fund - -
Sewer Enterprise Fund - -
Total Proprietary Funds S ~ 4 2,935

Total All Funds S1,414,117 S1,414,117

18. RESERVED AND DESIGNATED RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES
The City records reserves and dedications to indicate that a portion of the fund

equity is legally segregated for a sgpecific future use. The following details the
description and amount of all reserves and dedications used by the City.
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BALANCE AT

June 30, 199
Reserves of Fund Balance/Retained Earnings:

1. Sewer Enterprise Fund
(a) Reserved for Revenue Bond Debt Sexrvice $425,899
2. Nonexpendable Trust PFund
(a) Reserved for Endowment Principal 89,322
(b) Reserved for Cemetery Maintenance 259

3. Debt Service Fund
{a) Reserved for Capital Improvement Bond Debt
Service 233,049

S748,529

Designations of Fund Balance:

1. Special Revenue Funds
{a) Designated for Mausoleum Maintenance $ 12,661
(b} Desgignated for Housing Rehabilitation 985

$_ 13,646

SEGMENTS OF ENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES

Some services provided by the City of Ponchatoula are financed by user charges —
sewerage system, water system, and solid waste disposal. The gignificant financial
data for these enterprises are as follows:

Waterx Sewerage
System N ___System Total
Operating Revenues & 260,531 $ 5BE1,265 S 811,796
Depreciation S 46,774 S 159,625 S5 206,399
Operating Income {(Loss) S 87,016 5 18,088 S 105,104
Operating Grants S - S — S -
Operating Transfers In S - S 5,430 5 5,430
Taxes 5 - S ~ 5 ~
Net Income (Loss) S 94,639 S (43,674) 5 50, 965
Working Capital S 297,556 S  {17,156) S 280,400
Change in Capital
Contributions S - S 265,825 S 265,825
Property, Plant and
Eguipment :

Additions 5 15,644 S 656,943 & 672,887
Deletions S - S - 5 -
Total Assets &2, 355,633 $5, 583,321 47,938, 954
Obligations Payable $ 135,770 $ 77,203 & 212,973
Revenue Bonds Pavable S - 51,795,000 51,795,000
Equity S2,219,863 53,696,186 55,916,049
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CHANGES IN CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

The changes in the components of contributed capital for the proprietary fund type
during the year ended June 30, 1299, 1is as follows:

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund:

COMPONENTS QOF CONTRIBUTED CAPITAI,

FEDERAL STATE
GRANTS GRANTS @ MUNICTIPALITY TOTAL
Contributed Capaital:
Balance at June 30, 1998 S2,662,457 5219,464 $2,262,930 $5,144,851
additions 265,825 - - 265,825
Reductions - = - -
Balance at June 30, 1899 S2, 928,282 5219,464 S2,262,930 $5,410,676
Amortization of
Contributed Capital:
Ralance at June 30, 1998 S 398,961 S 47,257 5 = S 446,218
Additions:
Current Year Depreciation
On Fixed Assets Acquired
By Grants Restricted
for Construction 37,546 3,799 - 41,345
Balance at June 30, 1999 S_ 436,507 S 51,056 S - S 487,563
Net Contributed Capital $2,491,775 S168.,408 $2.262,930 $4,923.113

DEFERRED REVENUES AND OBLIGATION UNDER GRANT AGREEMENT

A. On april 24, 1992, the City of Ponchatoula entered into a contract with the
State of Louisiana - Division of Administration for a Louisgiana Community
Development Block Grant funded by the United States Department of Housing and
Urban Development 1n the amount of $£726,865. The purpose of this grant is to
provide infrastructure improvements to the Ponchatoula Industrial Park and a
maximum of $250,000 to provide a long-term permanent financing loan to J & M
Industries, Inc. for the purpose of purchasing eguipment and for relocating
their corporate headguarters in the industrial park. The original loan is a
maximum of $250,000 at 6.00% interest, and i1s to be repaid by J & M Industries,
Inc. in 96 monthly installments of $3,285. Ags of June 30, 1999, the amount
received by J & M Industries, Inc. under this loan agreement totaled $250,000.
Principal payments through June 30, 1992, total $167,047. The balance of this
note cutstanding at June 30, 1999 1is $82,953.

Under the terms of the agreement, the City of Ponchatoula is the maker of this
note with J & M Industries, Inc. and holds a security interest in all
furniture, fixtures and equipment which are purchased with the LCDBG funds.
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However, the City is required to return to the State of Louisiana - Division
of Administration all the principal, interest or other payments received from
J & M Industries, Inc. under the terms of this note. In fact, the contract
reguires J & M Industries, Inc. to make the note payments directly to the
Division of Administration. The City is reguired by the LCDBG contract to
monitor the repayment of these funds and perform other activities in connection
with the LCDBG contract. The City of Ponchatoula i1s contingently liable to the
Divigion of Adminizstration for repayment of this note shouwld J & M Industries,
Inc. default on the note and the City not fulfill 1ts obligations under the
contract,

Based on the feoregoing information, the deferred revenues at June 30, 1999, are
$81,852, the long-term debt created by this agreement on June 30, 1999, is
82,953, and the outstanding note receivable from J & M Industries, Inc. on
June 30, 1999, is S$82, 953,

On March 19, 1998, the City of Ponchatoula entered into a contract with the
State of Louisiana - Division of Administration for a Louisiana Community
Development Block Grant funded by the United States Departwment of Housing and
Urban Development in the amount o©f $168,000. The purpose of this grant is to
provide $150,000 to provide a long-term permanent financing loan to J & M
Industries, Inc, for the purpose of purchasing egquipment. The original loan
is a maximam of $150,000 at 6.25% interest, and i1s to be rvepaid by J & M
Industries, Inc. in 84 monthly installments of $2,209.30. As of June 30, 1999,
the amount received by J & M Industries, Inc. under this loan agreement totaled
$150,000. Principal payments through June 30, 1599, total $4,085. The balance
cf this note outstanding at June 30, 1999 1s §145,915,

Under the terms of the agreement, the City of Ponchatoula 1s the maker of this
note with J & M Industries, Inc. and holds a security interest in all
furniture, fixtures and eguipment wnich are purchased with the LCDBG funds.
However, the City is reguired to return to the State of Louisiana - Division
of Administration all the principal, interest or other payments received from
J & M Industries, Inc. undey the terms of this note. In fact, the contract
requirements J & M Industries, Inc. to make the note payments directly to the
Division of Administration. The City is regquired by the LCDBG contract to
monitor the repayment of these funds and perform other activities in connection
with the LCDRBRG contract. The City of Ponchatoula is contingently liable to the
division of Administration for repayment of this note should J & M Industries,
Inc. default on the note and the City not fulfill i1ts obligations under the
contract.

Based on the foregoing information, the deferred revenues at June 30, 1999, are
$145,915, the long-term debt created by this agreement on June 30, 19299, is
$145,915, and the outstanding note receivable from J & M Industries, Inc. on
June 30, 19399, is $145,915.
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COMPENSATION OF ELECTED OFFICIALS

NAME AND ADDRESS
Julian E. Dufreche
125 Woodhaven Drive
Ponchatoula, L&A 70454
(504)38B6-6281

C. W, Kinchen

248 West Hickory
Ponchatoula, LA 70454
{504)3B6-6275

Frank Self

484 North 11'" Street
Ponchatoula, LA 70454
{L04)3B6-6348

Jamegs McKnight

333 West Magnolia
Ponchatoula, LA 7045%4
(504)386-6779

Ora Lee Pea

1120 South First RR Avenue
Ponchatoula, LA 70454
(504)3B6-7693

Gary Stanga

175 Highland Rcad
Ponchatoula, LA 70454
(504)386-3742

Timothy J. Gideon

575 Bast Pine
Ponchatoula, LA 70454
(504)386-2152

YEAR 2000 ISSUE

POSTTION
Mayor

City Council
District A

City Council
District B

City Council
Digtrict C

City Council
District D

City Councii
District E

Police Chief

1995

EXPIRATION
OF TERM OF
OFFICE
June 30, 2000
June 30, 2000
June 30, 2000
June 30, 2000
June 30, 2000
June 30, 2000
June 320, 2000

SALARY

$ 39,600

6,000

¢, 000

6,000

6,000

6,000

34,262

The Year 2000 Isgue ig the result of shortcomings in many electronic data progcessing
systems and other electronic eguipment that may adversely affect the government’s
operations as early as fiscal year 1999.

The City of Ponchatoula has completed an inventory of computer systems and other
electronic eguipment that may be affected by the Year 2000 Isgsgue and that are
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necessary for conducting the City’s operations. Based on thisg inventory, the City
1s 1in the remediation stage in that bid specifications have been drawn up to
purchase, from outside vendors, hardware and software believed to be vyear 2000
compliant for the financial reporting systems; management believes the cost will be
negligible. Testing and validation of the systems will need to be completed after
the hardware and software are installed.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 Issue, its effects and the
success of related remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the vyear
2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that the City is or will be year 2000
ready, that the City’s remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part,
or that parties with whom the City does business will be year 2000 ready.

25. OPERATING BUDGETS

The City did not adopt an operating budget for the FY 97 L.C.D.B.G. Econowic
Devel opment Fund, Total revenues for this fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1989, totaled $517,218. Total expenditures for this fund for the year ended June 30,
1989, totaled $17,218. Inclusion of this fund with all other special revenue funds
in a combined statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance -
budget (GAAP Basgis) and actual, appearing on Page 8 (Exhibit ), would make the
financial statements misleading. Accordingly, these amounts have been omitted from
that financial statement.

Reconciliaticon of the beginning fund balances and actual revenues and expenditures
of all special revenue funds, to the amounts reported in Exhibit ¢ is as follows:

ACTUAL - ALL

ACTUAL PER ACTUAL SPECIAL REVENUE
*GAAP STATEMENT PER EXCLUDED FUND TYPES
(EXHIBIT C} FUNDS (EXHIRBIT B)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 1,733,232 5 - $ 1,733,232
Intergovernmental 31,877 14,675 46,552
Interest and Misgsgellaneous 43,973 2,543 46,516
Total Revenues $ 1,809,082 s 17,218 S 1,826,300
Expenditures:
General Government S 14,159 4 - S 14,159
Public Safety 147,697 - 147,697
Public Works - - -
Public Health 7,134 - 7,134
Miscellaneous Programs 36,139 17,218 53,357
Capital Outlay 65,714 - 65,714
Total Expenditures S 270,843 $ 17,218 5 288, 061
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Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 5 1,538,238 S - S 1,538,239

Other Financing (Uses):

Operating Transfers In 5 13,050 5 - S 13,050
Operating Transfers Out (1,398,132) ) - (1,398,132)

Excess of Revenues and Other Socurces

Over Expenditures and Other Uses 5 153,157 S - 5 153,157
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 812,613 3 - Bi2,613
Fund Balance - End of Year 8 965,770 5 ~ S 965,770
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS
AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
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GENERAL FUND

To account for resources traditionally associated with governments
which are not required to be accounted for in another fund.
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City of Ponchatoula
GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 1999 and 1998

ASSETS

Cash
Investments
Receivables (Net of Allowances Ifor
Uncollectibles Where Applicable):
Ad Valorem Taxes
Franchise Taxes
Garbage Collection Fees
Notes
Other Receivables
Due from Other Governments
Due from Scolid Waste Collection Fund
Due from FY 1985 Capital Projects Fund

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Accounts Pavyable
Accrued Liabkilities
Due to Water Fund
Due to Sewer Fund
Total Liabilities

Fund BRalance (Deficit} - Unreserved -
Undesignated

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

See auditor's report.
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$222,098

1,238
24,874
18,175

-

27,571
8, 804
5,332

$308, 092

EXHIBIT F

1998

S 66,608
19,510
9,600
4,886

$100,604

207,488

$308, 0982

$186,328

3,697
22,137
20,561

703
30,611
8,804

$272,841

S 66,454
58,894
9,600

4,886




City of Ponchatoula
GENERAL FUND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET

Revenuesg:

Taxres
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Fines and Forfeitures
Sanitation Service TFees
Culture and Recreation
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Cemetery
Culture and Recreation
Miscellaneous Prodgrams
Capital Outlay
Debt 5ervice
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Proceeds from Capital Leases

Excesgs (Deficiency) of
Revenues and COther
Sourcesg Over ExXpendil-
tures and Other Uses

Fund Balance Beginning of Year

EXHIBIT F-1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, BXPENDITURES, AND
(GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
for the Year Ended June 30, 1999
With Comparative aActual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
- 1899
VARIANCE -
REVISED FAVORABLE 1998
RUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL

8 254,270 g 26872 ,730 $ { 1,540) S 239,289
272,475 272,784 309 264,111
413, 996 402,828 {11,168) 376,916
78, 000 87,466 9,466 83,229
251,500 251,538 38 242,626
1,000 1,075 75 985
. 13123.148 3 116,820 ( 6.328) 134,687
$ 1,394,388 $ 1,385,241 S { 9,148) $ 1,341,843
$ 522,694 5 488, 694 5 34,000 S 479,343
1,126, 928 970,560 156,368 898,641
675,858 652,057 23,801 605,684
44,212 40,099 4,113 38,803
100,119 100,432 {313} 97,008
174,420 171,235 3,185 201,208
85,848 82,031 3,817 116,282
_ 74,023 96,801 {22.,778) 44,384
S 2,804,102 & 2,601,909 S_202,193 S 2,481,353
$(1,409,713}) 8{1,216,668} S 193,045 $(1,139,510]}
1,376,863 1,232,101 (144, 762) 1,000,000
- ( - } - ( 246)
. 59,048 59,048 - 39,165
5 26,198 $ 74,481 $ 48,283 5 ( 100,591)
133,007 133,007 - 233,598
$_ 159,205 % 207,488 548,283 S 133.007

Fund Ralance at End of Year

See audifor's report.
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City of Ponchatoula
GENERAL FUND

EXHIBIT F-2

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, CCOMPARED TO RUDGET (GAAP BASIS)

See auditor's report.

for the Year Ended June 30,

1998

53

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 19098
1993
VARIANCE -
REVISED FAVORABLE 1998
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
Taxes:
Ad Valorem & 114,925 110,640 S ( 4,285) & 107,489
Ponaltlies and Interest 14,060 14,029 { 31) 10,3167
Fublic Utilities Franchise 125, 285 128,061 AN 121,733
S 25%4,270 252,730 S { 1,540) & 239,389
Licenses and Permiis:
aecupational Licenses $ 263,450 263,467 = 17 S 249,720
Bullding Permits 8,600 8,867 267 13,780
Kinago and Special Permits 425 450 25 . 611
S 272,475 272,784 5 3009 5 264,111
Intergovernnental :
State Supplemental Pay S 65, 700 67,800 5 2,100 5 63,240
Video Poker Taxes 48,935 44,477 ( 4,458) 47,547
Tobacco Taxes 27,500 27,556 56 27,556
Beelr Taxes 17,625 18, 3492 717 14,108
State Grant- Main Streetl - - ~ 1,338
Parish Fire Insuranhce Fees 10,750 11,497 707 10, 791
kevenue Egualization - PILOT 7,500 7,500 - 10,561
Council on Aging 110,000 108,737 ( 1,263) 123,300
COPS Grant 43,000 33,973 ( 9,027) -
Rural Fire District Grant 50,000 50,000 - 50,000
Law Enforcement Grant 32,946 32.94¢ - 28,475
5 413,896 402,828 S {11,168} 3 376,910
Fines and Forfeitures S 78,000 B7,466 5 9,466 5 83,229
Sanltation Service Fees S 251,500 251,538 5 38 S 242,626
Culture and Recreation S 1,000 1,075 5 75 5 985
Miscellaneous:
FEMA - Hurricane Reimb. 3 11,350 11, 356 5 6 S -
Cemelery - Receipls 10, 000 10,450 450 9,036
Interest 12,000 11,207 ( 793) 7,135
Fntergy Application Fee 2,830 3,065 235 2,725
Maintenance DOTD 4,882 4,881 { 1) 4,881
Health Insurance Refund 14,190 14,192 2 -
DEQ Litter Abatement Grant 10,000 7,334 ( 2,666)
Milscellaneous 20,552 32,213 11, 661 16,127
Grant - Police Eqg. - - ~ 1,202
Fees Culvert Installation 2,500 2,395 { 106} 2,000
Motion Patrol Grant 2,600 2,603 3 £39
Land Sale- Industrial Park ~ - - 86,000
Law Enforcement Training- Reimb. 2,100 2,444 344 S00
Appearance Bonds 2,800 2,800 - 3,752
Sale of Equipment 11,880 11,880 -
Arts Council Grant 11,500 - (11,500)
cemetery Perpetual Care Reimb. 31,964 - _( 32,9¢64)
S 123,148 $. 116,820 5_ (6,328} S_ 134,687
$1,394, 389 $1.385,241 $..( 9,148) $1,341,2843




City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT F-3
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES, COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP BASIS)
for the Year pnded June 30, 1999
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
194959
VARTANCE -
REVISED FAVORABLE 1998
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE]) ACTUAL
General Government :
Legislative-
Salaries-City Council 5 30,000 5 27,500 G 2,500 2 29,500
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefitsg &, 755 7,262 {507) &,018
Insurance 2,820 2,821 (1) 1,617
Conferences ang Conventions 1,500 1,764 (264 ) 1,358
Telephone 250 211 | 17 168
Total Legislative & 41,325 $ 39,560 5 1,765 $ 3B, 662
Judicial-
Salaries-Police Court 5 40, 080 5 37,699 5 2,381 S 30,378
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 6,476 7,048 (572) 4,782
Insurance ~ 118 (118) G4
supplies 2,000 215 1,785 2,106
Training 2,256 <, 256 - 2,356
1Telephone 125 131 { 6}
Total Judicial S 50,937 S 47,467 S 3,470 2 40,3316
Executive-
Salarvies-Mayox S 77, 740 5 75,999 S 1,741 5 55,970
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 16,877 17,755 (B78) 12,412
Insuwyrance 2,020 2,484 4641} 1,227
vehiiole 2, 100 2,237 463 2,022
Conferences and Conventions &, 000 4,208 792 2,375
1Telephone 2.100 2,372 (272} 1,031
St.rawberry Festival 350 318 32 457
Supplies o0 534 160
Total Executive $ 107,487 & 105,507 s 1,580 5 75,4584
General Government :
Financial -
Salaries - City Clerk and
AsoistanbLs S 105,348 S 301,268 5 4,080 4 98,861
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 17,738 17,183 555 14,421
Insurance 290 1,036 {746 ) 626
AUGLL and Lcocounting 2,752 2,680 66 10,650
Computer £,500 75 8,425 141
Conferences and Conventions 5,000 4,948 52 4,012
Vehicle 550 477 73 167
Dues and Subscriptions 600 605 { 5) 597
Miscellaneous 200 187 13 B84
Telephone 320 39 [ 71) -
Total Financial S 141, 29K S 128,856 5 12,442 5 130,559
{CONTINUED)
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT F-3
GENERAL FUND {CONTINUED)
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES, COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) (CONTINUED)
for the Year Ended June 30, 1999
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
19959
VARIANCE-
REVISED FAVORABLE 1998
BUDGET ACTUAL (UONFAVORABLE ) ACTUAIL
Building Inspector-
salaries 26,210 & 25,296 914 24,510
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 6,354 &,855 ( 461) 5,296
Insurance 1,320 1,320 - 1,612
vehicle 2,100 2,255 {  15%) 1,492
Confecrences and Conventjions 1,800 1,797 3 619
Supplies 1,900 1,812 88 1,633
Pues and Subscriptions 55 55 - 55
Telephone 1,325 1,24]) B4 435
City Planner Retainer 1,800 1,650 150 1,350
Building Inspector 1,200 1,200 - 1,200
Mapping 3,000 3,000 -
Total Building Inspector 47,104 5 46,481 623 5 18,202
Othey General Government -
insurance 23,000 5 B,775 14,225 41,684
l.egal Fees and Costs 13,300 13,528 ( 226) 16,008
nudit and Accounting 18,500 17,696 BO4 17,965
Ordinance Codification 2,200 2,200 ~ 2,200
Outside Consultant 1,160 4,601 (1,441} 10,404
Repairs to Building 200 209 ( 9} 29
Fepalrs Lo Egquipment 2,000 1,905 95 116
Janitorial Service 2,500 2,200 300 2,445
Maintenance Agreement 3,000 3,033 E 33) 2,993
Conferences and Conventions 900 923 { 23) 2,352
supplies 18,150 17,726 424 17, 994
Office Supplies 6,500 6,951 ( 451) 5,052
Fostage 5, 700 5,173 527 4,533
Rental 1,500 1,688 ( 188} 1,527
Dues and Subscriptions 2,250 1,703 L4 7 2,481
Advertising 2,300 2,488 { 188) 1,190
Utilities 10,750 10,681 69 11,683
Telephone 6,350 6,702 ( 352) 5,127
Economic Development 6,000 5, 000 -
City Planner Retaliners - - - 300
Pest Control 288 288 - 264
IL,Landscaping 2,545 2,714 { 16%2) 2,973
Writing Tax Rolls 2,700 2,708 { 8) 2,672
Miscellaneous 1,750 1,533 217 4,317
Total Other General Government 134,543 120,423 14,120 156,110
Total General Government 522,694 s 48B,694 34,000 S__ 479,343
Public Safety:
Police:
Salaries-Police 436,269 5 423,892 12,377 382,632
Salaries-Supplemental Pay 41,000 42,600 (1L,600) 39,330
Payryoll Taxes and Employee Benefits 91,266 938,890 {8,624) 82,063
Less Police Salary Millage - (81,505) 91,505 75,572)
Grant Match 1,461 1,469 ( 8) -
Grant Administration 2,331 2,331 - -
(CONTINUED)
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city of Ponchatoula
GENERAL FUND

EXHIBIT F-3
(CONTINUED)

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES, COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP RBASTIS) (CONTINUELD)

Wwith Comparative Actual

public Safety (Continued):

Police (Continued) :
Inisurance

Vehicle

Supplies

Untiform

Eguipment. Repalrs
Telephone

Utilities

conference and Conventions
Building Maintenance
Prisoner Costs

Training

Miscellaneous

Total Police
Fire:;

Salaries
Salaries- Supplemental Pay

Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits

Less Fireman Salary Millage
Call Back FPay

Insurance

Vehicle

Supplies

Uniform

Eguipmuent Repalrs

Telephone

Utilities

conferences and Conventions
Miscellaneous

Euilding Maintenance
Mileage

Tralining

Pre-Planning

Total Fire

Civil Defense:
Directory
Insurance
Generatoxr
Tel ephone
Supplies

Total (Civil Defense

Taotal public Safety

for the Year Ended June 30, 19295

Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

1999
VARIANCE -
REVISED FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
65,407 64,635 772
81,000 78,708 2,292
26,000 28,004 { 2,004)
3,600 3,620 { 20)
2,800 2,991 ( 191)
10,975 10,686 289
10,775 10,855 { 80}
3,000 2,896 104
1,500 1,689 ( 189)
10,200 10,135 &5
: 430) ([ 430) .
4,053 3,642 411
& 791,207 S_ 685,708 95,499
g 377,287 & 168,175 G,112
25,200 25,200 -
47,074 51,205 ( 4.131)
- (55,792) 55,792
$, 000 8,560 ( 560)
20,700 20,926 { 226)
12,750 12,6272 128
8,665 8,927 { 262)
1,350 1,661 { 311}
2,000 31,815 185
7,500 7,245 255
10, 850 10,693 157
2,500 2,500 -
603 475 128
&, 000 L,435 565
- 32 ( 32)
2,592 2,592 -
S 333,071 s 272,271 S 60,800
S 400 5 400 -
350 350 -
250 333 { 83)
550 645 S
1,000 253 147
S 2,650 s 2,581 69
$1,126,928 & 970,560 156,368
(CONTINUED}
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1998

ACTUAL

L, 687
46,858
31,0765
q,299
4,188
9,355
8,789
1,322
743
g,97%
7,102
4,290

607,136

181,399
23,910
48,030
(35,255}
7,200
17,373
6,640
7,398
1,255
1,939
6,530
12,921
2,500
628
3,417
32
3,168

S 285,065

180
292
157
€31
880

2.440

g98,641
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIRIT F-3
GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES, COMPARED TO BUDCET (GAAP BASIS) (CONTINUED)
for the Year Ended June 30, 1999
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
15995
VARTANCE-
REVISED PAVORARLE 1998
BUDNGET ACTUAL S{UNEFLAVORARLE) ACTUAL
Fublic Works:
Streets:
Salaries $ 134,544 $ 131,688 $ 2,856 S 107,351
Payroll Taxes and
Employee Benefits 29,403 33,001 (2,598) 24,628
Insurance 32,294 32,299 { 5 21,924
Street and Traffic Lights 48,500 48,912 ( 412) 46,345
Vehicle 13,200 13, 366 { 166} 10,9073
Materials and Supplies 76,375 74,808 1,567 61,646
Maintenance and Repairs 15,000 14,871 129 27,233
Egquipment Repairs and Rentals - - - -
Conterences 100 - 101 -
UDtilities 4,800 4,739 61 4,53]
Telephone 6,950 1,138 5,812 68Y
Miscellaneous 5,450 6,530 (1,080) 11,8023
Christmas Decorations
and Lights 8,500 B,893 7 11,326
Tree Maintenance 20,000 16,801 3,159 8,416
Uniforms - 2,950 3,179 ( 229) 1,607
Total Streets 5__398,466 $_ 390,225 $ 8,241 S 338,441
Sanlitation;
Building Demolition/Repairs 5 ~ $ - $ - $ 5,572
Animal Control 1,825 1,825 - 1,387
Contract Garbage Collection 215, 367 197,53% 17,828 213,181
Litter Abatewment 8,350 9,164 {  814) -
Mosguito and Pest Control - - - 96
Miacel]laneous 45 443 7 £50
Coroners Fees g,5%00 9, 862 (1,362) 9,474
Animal SBheltey 12,000 12,000 - 12,000
Trash Hauling 25,000 24,845 155 19,082
Uncollectible Accounts - 5 . 800 6,154 {  254) 5,791
Total Sanitation $__ 277,392 S__ 261,837 S 15,560 & 267,243
Total Public Works $: 675,858 5 652,057 S 2 01 S5 605,684
Cemetery:
Salaries S - $ - 5 - 5 7,663
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits - - - 2,226
Insurance - - - 1,415
Supplies BOO 651 143 1,063
Maintenance 43,412 19,448 3,964 29,980
Repairs - - . 347
Vehicle and Mower - - - -
Uniforms - ~ - 235
l.ess Perpetual Care Funds - - - (4,126)
Miscellaneous - - - . -
Total Cemetery S 44,212 $ 40,099 S 4,113 5 38,803
{CONTINUED)
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT F-3
GENERAL FUND {CONTINUED)
- STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES, COMPARED TQ BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) {(CONTINUED)
for the Year Ended June 30, 1999
With Comparative Actual Amountse for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
1599
VARIANCE -
REVISED FAVORABLE 1998
BUDGET _ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
Culture and Recreation:
Recreation and Parks:
Salaries 5 5,650 3 6,199 5 { 549) $ 12,492
Payvrocll Taxes and
Employee Benefits 600 680 { BO) 1,113
Insurance 2,80 2,192 8 1,267
supplies 2,000 2,328 { 328) 2,814
Building Maintenance 2,700 4,460 (1, 760) 1,659
Equipment Repairs 5,150 4,714 436 2,409
Utilities 575 568 7 523
Telephone - - - -
Vehicle 1,150 1,638 { 4188) B63
Miscellaneocus 1,050 _ - 1,050 44
Total Recreation and Parks 5 21,655 5 23,359 5 (1,704} 5 23,184
Community Center:
Salaries 5 34,224 5 33,636 S 588 S 32,357
Payroll Taxes ang
Employee Benefits 3,807 4,063 { 256) 5,339
Insurance 8,220 8,236 ( 16} 2,863
Supplies 12,000 11,856 144 9,333
Maintenance and Upkeep - - - -
Utilities 14,250 14,216 34 15,419
Telephone 950 887 63 812
Miscellaneous 338 Z88 50 1,374
Building Repailrs 1,400 864 636 3,722
Uniforms 1,200 1,208 [ 9} 775
Eguipment. Repailrs 500 339 161 1,830
Vehicle 1,575 1,479 98 -
Total Community Center 5 7R,464 5 77,073 5 1,393 S 73,824
Total Culture and
Recreation $ 100,119 $_ 100,432 s { 313) $ 7,008
Miscellaneous Programs:
Miscellaneous s 850 S L4g 5 204 5 584
Senicr Citizens ang
Information Center - - - 322
Veterans Seryrvice 684 684 - E70
Alligator Maintenance 100 83 17 98
Museun 1,975 1,811 164 1,387
Insurance 1,200 1,163 37 -
Arts Council 11,500 11,500 - -
Mapping 5,000 5,000 - -
Industrial Park 2B,650 28,282 368 64,799
Main Street Program 14,211 14,054 157 13,073
{CONTINUED)
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City of Ponchatoula

See auditor’s report.
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EXHIBIT F-3

GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES, COMPALRED TO BUDGCET (GAAP BAGSIS) {CONTINUED)
for the Year Ended June 30, 1999
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
159659
VBRIANCE -
REVISED FAVORABLE 1998
BEUDGET LACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE) ACTUARIL,
Miscellaneous Programs (Continued) :
Planning and Development 250 250 ~ ~
Council on Aging 110,000 107,862 2,138 120,27%
Total Miscellaneous
Programs $_ 174,420 $ 171,235 5 3,185 S_ 201,208
Capital Outlay:
General Government 5 11,600 5 21,314 5 ( 9,714) 5 4,786
Public Safety- Police 73,048 59,048 14,000 56,802
Public Safety - Fire 1,200 1,200 - 41]
Less Equipment Millage - - - -
Public Safely-Civil Defense - - - 2559
Public Works- Street Dept. ~ ~ - 53,470
Cemetery - - - -
Culture and Recreation - 469 { 469} 54
Miscellaneous Programs - - -
Total Capital Outlay 5 B5L, B4B $_L E2,031 S_ 3,817 5 116,282
bt Service:
Generyal Government 31,585 31,585 ~ 29,200
Fublic Safety - Folice 27,152 44,283 (17,131) -
FPublic Works - Street Dept . 1L, 286 20 933 (5,647} 14,484
Total Debt Service 4 74,023 S 96, 801 S (22,778) 5 44,384
Total Expenditures 2,804,102 52,601,909 $_.202,193 52,481,353
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the City of Ponchatoula,
Louisiana's 1% sales and use tax passed by the citizens on April 10,
1965, Revenues derived from the sales and use tax are dedicated for
the purpose of constructing, acguiring, extending, improving and/or
maintaining drainage facilities, streets, sidewalks, public
buildings and/or fire department stations and eguipment, i1ncluding
fire engines; purchasing and acquiring furnighings for the aforesaid
public works, buildingsg, improvements and facilities; and
maintaining and operating garbage collection facilities including
the eguipment therefore, title to which improvements shall be in the
public, and any one or more of said purposes.

1965 Sales
Tax Fund -

To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the City of Ponchatoula,
Louisiana's additional 1% sales and use tax passed by the citizens
on April 3, 1982. Revenues derived from the sales and use tax are
dedicated to construction and maintalining streets, sewers, sewage
disposal works, waterworks facilitles and drains and drainage
facilities and feor any other lawful corporate purposes of the City.

1982 Sales
Tax Fund -

The proceeds from this sales tax has been pledged and dedicated to
the retirement of the $1,725,000 Series ST-1995 Public Improvement
Bondg 1issued June 23, 1988.

Solid Waste To account for the receipt and use of proceeds received foxr garbage
Collection collection in excess ©f actual expenditures pursuant to Ordinance
Fund - 411 passed by the Mayor and City Council on April 11, 1890. All

proceeds and interest collected are dedicated to offgset future
increases in garbage c¢ollection charges and disposal fees.

Mausoleum To account for the receipts, including the sale of crypts and fees, and
Trust Fund - the transfers to the general fund. The City receives 21% of the
sales price of the crypts and has dedicated 10% of the gales price
to the maintenance and insurance of the mausocleum. The remaining
11% of the sales price received by the City may be used for any

purpose which the City desires.

Emergency To account for the paybacks from low interest Community Development Block

Housing

Grant lcansg and appropriations from the City's general fund.

Rehabilitation The funds are dedicated for emergency home repalr to benefit low
Fund - income residents.

Fire, Police To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the City of Ponchatoula,
and Eguipment Louigiana's 10 mills property tax pagsed by the citizens on July 21,
Millage 1990. Revenues derived from the property tax are dedicated 6 mills
Funds - to paying Police Department salariesg, 2 mills to paying Fire

Department salaries and 2 mills to purchasge eguipment for the Police
and Fire Departments of the City. The tax is for a period of ten
years, beginning with the year 1990.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FY 1991 L.C.D.B.G. - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND - To account for the costs agsociated with

construction of infrastructure improvements to the Ponchatoula Industrial
Park and an economic development loan to a tenant locating in the
industrial park. Financing for this project is provided by a FY 1991
Louisiana Community Development Block Grant - Economic Development Block
Grant in the amount of $726,865. 0Of this amount, $250,000 1n revolving
loan funds is available as a lean to J & M Industries, Inc. to purchase
equipment and other costs associated with relocating to the park.

FY 1997 L.C.D.B.G. - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND - To account for the costs associated

construction of infrastructure improvements to the Ponchatoula
Industrial Park and an economic development lcan Lo a tenant located in
the industrial park. Financing for this project is provided by a FY
1997 Louisiana Community Development Block Grant - Economic Development
Block GCGrant in the amount of 5168,000, Cf this amount, 5$150,000 in
revolving loan funds is available as a loan to J & M Industries, Inc. to
purchase equipment for the sole purpose of facilitating the expansion of
its existing facility located in Ponchatoula, Louisiana.
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STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN FUN

City of Ponchatoula
SPECIAL REVENUE TUNDS
1965 SALES TAX FUND

for the Year Ended June 30,

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN

D BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS)

D

AND ACTUATL

19989

With Comparative Actual aAmounts for the Year Ended June 30,

Revenues:
Taxes - Sales Taxes
Interest
Total Revenues

Expenditures:

General Government:
Collection Fees
Enterprise Zone Refund
Migcellaneous

Total Expenditures

Excess ©of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
(Uses) :
Operating Transfers In
(Out) :
General Fund
FY 1293 Capital
Improvement Fund

Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of

1998

Revenues QOver Expenditures

and Other Uses

Fund Balance at Beginning
of Year

Fund Balance at End of
Year

See auditor's report.

1999
VARIANCE -
REVISED FAVORABLE
B ET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
§ 768,000 & 781,481 $ 13,481
5,300 5,385 85
& 773,300 S 786,866 § 13,566
5 5,047 S 5,079 > {32)
500 500 -~
5 5,547 S 5,579 S (32)
S 767,753 $ 781,287 5 13,534
${694,333) $(694,333) 5 -
S 73,420 $ B6, 954 3 13,534
L501226 501226 ~
$ 223 646 $ 237,180 $ 13,53

64

EXHIBIT G-2

1598
ACTUAL

$ 691,002
2: 911
$ 693,913

5 4,492
18,455
200

S__ 23,447

$ 670,466

$(575,000)

( 21,050}

${596,050)

S 74,416

75,810

5_150,226




City of Ponchatoula
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
1882 SALES TAX FUND

STATEMENT QOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES 1IN FUND BA’

LANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAIL

Revenues:
Taxes -
Interest

Total Revenues

Sales Taxes

Expenditures:

General Government :
Collection Fee
Enterprise Zone Refund
Miscellaneous

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Cther Financing Sources
(Uses} :
Operating Transfers In
(Out) :

1995 Sales Tax Sinking Fund S

General Fund

1995 Sales Tax Sinking Fund

FY93 Capital Projects

Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Excess (Defilciency) of

Revenues Over Expenditures

and Other Uses

Fund Balance at Beginning
of Year

Fund Ralance at End of

for the Year Ended June 30, 1999
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
. 1899
VARIANCE -
REVISED FAVORABLE
_BUDGET ACTUAL {AUNFAVORARLE)
$ 768,000 $ 781,481 $ 13,481
5,000 5,204 204
$ 773,000 $ 786,685 $ 13,685
S 5,047 $ 5,080 5 33
500 500 -
$ 5,547 $_ . 5.580 $ (33)
S 767,453 S 781,105 S 13,652
13,050 S 13,050 S -
(534,833) (534,832) 1
(168, 970) (168, 967) 3
5{690,753) S{690,749) S 4
S 76,700 S 90,356 S 13,656
148,882 148 2 -
S 225,682 $_239,338 S 13,656

Year

See auditor's report.
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EXHIBIT G-3

1998
ACTUAL

$ 691,002
2,841
$ 693,843

g 4,492
18,455
500

S___ 23,447

$ 670,396

& 39,288
(42%, 000)
(162,798}

({ 52,994}

${601,504)

S 68,892

80,0390

§ 148,982
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT G-4
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

for the Year Ended June 30, 1999
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

1999
VARIANCE -
ORIGINAL FAVORABLE 1998
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
Revenues:
Taxes R - 5 ~ S - 5 -
Interest 500 486 (14) 795
Total Revenues S 500 S 486 S (14} S 795
Expenditures:
General Government S 500 5 500 S ~ S 500
Public Works ~ ~ ~ -
Total Expenditures 5 500 S, 500 S - 8 500
Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures S - S (14) S (14) 5 295
Other Financing Sources
(Uses) :
Operating Transfers In
(Out) :
General Fund S - S ~ S - S -
1995 Sales Tax Sinking Fund . - - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources {Uses) S - 5 - S - 5 -
Excess {(Deficiency) of
Revenueg Over EXpend-
itures and Other Uses S - S (14) S (14) S 295
Fund Balance at Beginning
of Year 4,396 4,396 - 4,101
Fund Balance at End of
Year $ 4,396 5 4,382 S (14} 5 4,396

See auditor's report.
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT G-5
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
MAUSOLEUM TRUST FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

for the Year Ended June 30, 1899
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

1929
VARIANCE -
REVISED FAVORARBLE 1998
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
Revenues:
Sale of Crypts S - 5 - S - S 482
Interest 1,400 1,457 7 1,462
Total Revenues 5 1,400 5 1,457 g 57 S 1,944
Expenditures:
General Government S 500 5 500 S - S 500
Total Expendituresg $ 500 S 500 S - S 500
Excess ©f Revenues
Over Expenditures S 900 S 957 5 57 S 1,444
Other Financing Sources
(Uses) :
Operating Transfers 1In
(Cut)
General Fund 5 - S - 5 ~ § -
1985 Sales Tax Sinking Fund - - ] - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) S - 4 . s - S -
Excegss (Deficiency) of
Revenueg QOver Expend-
itures and Other Uses S 00 S 957 S 57 5 1,444
Fund Balance at Beginning
of Year 28,872 28,886 i 14 27,442
Fund Balance at End of
Year $__29,772 5__ 29,843 5. 71 $__28,886

See auditor's report.
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT G-6
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
EMERGENCY HOUSING REHABILITATION FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, BEXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAIL

for the Year Ended June 30, 1899
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 19598

1895
VARIANCE-
REVISED FAVORABLE 1998
BUDGET ___ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
Revenues:
Taxes S - 5 - S - 5 -
Interest 575 186 (389) 336
Total Revenues S 575 5 186 S (389) 5 336
Expenditures:
General Government S 500 S 500 S - S 500
Health Safety 6,500 7,134 (234) ) -
Total Expenditures S 7.400 S 7.634 $ (234) S 500
Excess of Revenues
Ovey Expenditures g {(6,825) S (7,448) S (623) S ( 164}
Other Financing Sources
(Uses) :
Operating Transfers In
(Cut) :
General Fund S - 5 - 4 - & -
1995 Sales Tax Sinking Fund - - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources {(Uses) S - S - S - 5. -
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expend-
1tures and Cther Uses S (6,825) S (7,448) S (623) S ( 164)
Fund Balance at Beginning
cf Year 8,433 8,433 ~ 8,597
Fund Balance at End of
Year $.__1.608 5 985 S (623) 5 8,433

See auditor's report.
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STATEMENT

Revenues:
Taxes - Ad Valorem
Interest and Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expendituresg:
General Government
Public Safety:
Salaries
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
(Uses) :
Operating Transfers In
(Out} :
General Fund
1995 SBales Tax Sinking Fund

Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expend-
itures and Other Uses

Fund Balance at Beginning
of Year

Fund Balance at End of

City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT G-7
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FIREMAN PAY MILLAGE FUND
F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAARP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
for the Year Ended June 30, 1999
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
1999
VARIANCE-

REVISED FAVORARBRLE 1998
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
$ 36,000 $ 35,293 5 (707) $ 35,109
4,850 4,487 {363) 4,955
S 40,850 S 39,780 5 (1,070) S 40,064
3 500 $ 500 5 - 4 500

51.142 55,792 {4,65Q) 35,255
$__ 51,642 S_. 56,292 5 _(4,650) S 35,755
s (10,792) $ (16,512) S (5,720) S 4,309
S - S - S - 5 ~
S - $ - 5 - S -
& (10,792) $ {16,512) S (5,720) S 4,309
_ 105,252 _ 105,252 - _100,943
S_ 94,460 $ 88,740 S {(5,720) $ 105,252

Yeay

See auditor's report.
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City of Ponchatoula
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

POLICEMAN PAY MILLAGE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASTS) AND ACTUAL
for the Year Bnded June 30, 1999
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
1999
VARTANCE -
REVISED FAVORABLE
B ET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
Revenues:
Taxes - Ad Valorem S 107,250 S 99,684 5 (7,566)
Interest 15,000 20,545 5,545
Total Revenues S 122,250 S 120,229 S (2,021)
Expenditures:
General Government S 500 5 500 S s
Public Safety:
Salaries 91,914 91,905 : N
Total Expenditures S 92,414 5 82,405 S g
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expendituresg S 29,838 S 27,824 5 (2,012}
Othey Fihancing Sources
(Usses) :
Operating Transfers In
(Out) :
General Fund S - S - S -
1985 Sales Tax Sinking Fund ~ - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) S ~ S - 5 -
Excess (Deficiency} of
Revenues Over Expend-
itures angd Other Uses S 29,836 5 27,824 S {(2,012)
Fund BRalance at Beginning
of Year 325,372 325,372 -
Fund Balance at End of
Year $_355,208 5. 353,196 S__ {2,012)

See auditor's report.
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EXHIPIT -8

1998
ACTUAL
$ 100,486
20,166
$ 120,652
S 500
75.572
& 76,072
& 44,580
$ -
$ -
& 44,580
280,792
S 325,372
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Revenues:
Taxes - Ad Valorem
Intergovernmental Grant
Interegst
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General Government
Capital Outlay:
Equipment
Total Expenditures
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
(Uses) :
Operating Transfers In
{Out) :
General Fund
1995 Sales Tax Sinking Fund

Total Other Financing

Sources {Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues (Qver Expend-
itures and Other Uses

Fund Balance at Beginning
ol Year

Fund Balance at End of
Year

City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT G-9
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
EQUIPMENT MILLAGE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET {(GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
for the Year Ended June 30, 1999
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
1999
VARIANCE-
REVISED FAVORARLE 1998

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORARLE) LCTUAL
S 36,000 $ 35,293 $ (707) $ 35,109
1,350 1,103 (247) 1,476
850 858 8 21,175
$ 28,200 S 37,254 S {846) S 37,760
5 500 5 500 5 - 5 500
4,185 65,714 {1,529) 14,564
5__ 64,685 566,214 S_ (1,529) $_ 15,064
$ (26,485) S (28,960) S (2,475) S 22,696

5 - S5 - $ - S -

S - S - S - S -
$ {(26,485) $ (28, 960) $ (2,475) S 22,696
__ 41,066 41,066 - 18,370
S 14,581 $ 12,106 S (2,475) S__ 41,066

See auditor's report.
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City Of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT G-
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FY 91 L.C,D.BR.G., ECONOMIC DEVELCPMENT TFUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

for the Year Ended June 30, 1299
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

1999
VARIANCE -
REVISED FAVORLBLE 1998
_BUDGET — ACTUAL _ UNFAVORABLE ACTUAL
Revenueg:
Intergovernmental Grant S 32,200 S 30,774 5 {1,426} S 31,701
Interest 10,400 5,365 (5,035) 7,723
Total Revenues S 42,600 S 36,138 S (6,461) S 39,424
Expenditures:
Econcmic Development S_ 42,600 S5 36,139 5 (6,461) S 39,424
Total Expenditures S _ 42,600 S__ 36,139 S {(6.,4671) S 39.424
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures S - 5 - S - R -
Other Financing Sources
{(Uses) .
Operating Transfers In
{(Out) :
General Fund - ~ ~ -
1995 Sales Tax Sinking Fund - - - -
Total Other Financing
sources (Uses) $ - $ - $ - S -
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over EBEXxXpend-
itures and Other Uses S ~ $ - S - $ -
Fund Balance at Beginning
of Year - ~ ~ -
Fund Balance at End of
Year S - = - S - S -

See auditor’s report.
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City Of Ponchatoula EXHIRBRIT G-13

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FY 97 L.C.D.B.G. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

for the Year Ended June 30, 1299
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

1299
VARIANCE -~
REVISED PAVORARBLE 1898
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAIL
Revenuesg:
Intergovernmental Grant g - S 14,675 S 14,675 S -
Interest - 2,543 2.543 -
Total Revenues S - S 17,218 S 17,218 S -
Expenditures:
Economic Development 5 - S 17,218 S {17.218) $ - )
Total Expenditures $ -~ $_ 17,218 $_117,218) S -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ - S - 5 ~ 5 -
OCther Financing Sources
(Ugses)
Operating Transfers In
(Out ) :
General Fund - - - ~
1985 Sales Tax Sinking Fund - - - - R
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) S - = - $ - $ -
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over EXpend-
itures and Other Uses 5 - 5 - 3 ~ $ -
Fund BRalance at Beginning
of Year - ~ - ~
Fund BRalance at End of
Yeary 5 - S - S - A $ ~

See audlitor's report.
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service FPFunds - To account for the payment o¢of principal and interest of the
fellowing:

Series ST-1994 Public Improvement Bonds-General Long-Term Debt for the purpose of
capital improvements. The $1,725,000 serial bonds are due in annual installments,
plus interest, through maturity in 2009. Annual interest rate of 4.10% to 9.00%.
Payment of these bonds is secured by an irrevocable pledge and dedication of the
proceeds ¢©f the 1982 1% sales tax.

Series 1988 Certificates of Indebtedness - General Long-Term Debt for the purpose
of paying the costs of (i) constructing, improving and maintaining streets, {ii)
financing and/or refinancing the purchase of vehicles and equipment, (iii) making

other capital iwmprovements in the City and (iv) paying the costs incurred in
connection with the issuance of the certificateg. The $750,000 gerial certificates
are due in annual installwments, plus interest through maturity in 2008. Annual
interest rate of %.20%. Payment of these certificates 1s secured by a pledge and
dedication of the excess revenues of the General Fund.

14
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City of Ponchatoula
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 1999

with Comparative Totals as of June 1998

Assets:
Cash
Investments
Accrued Interest Receivable
Due From Fiscal Agent Bank

Total Assels

ASSETS

FY 1998 FY 1985

CAPITAL CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS

S - S 65,412
- 165:410
- 2,227

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Laiahilities

Fund Balance:
kReserved for Debt Service

Unreserved - Undesignated
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilitieg and
Fund Balances

See auditor's report.

5 ~ S ~

- 233,049
5 ~ $233,049
S - $233.049

75

EXHIBIT H
TOTALS
1999 1998
S 65,412 S 56,981
165,410 173,319
2,227 -
$233,049 $230.,300
$ - 5 -
233,049 230,300
$233,049 $230,300
$233,049 $230,300
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City of Ponchatoula
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

EXHIBIT H-1

COMRINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

OLND

For the Year Ended June 30, 1899

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
FY 19298 FY 19295
CAPITAL CAPITAL TOTALS
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS 1999 1998
Revenues:
Interest S - S 13,799 S_ 13,799 S__ 10,262
Total Revenues 5 - S 13,799 S 13,799 S 10,262
Expenditures:
General Government s - S - S ~ 5 500
Principal Retirement - 133,180 133,180 85,000
Interest - 33,180 33,180 74,910
Paying Agent's Fee - - - 300
Other - 607 607 300
Total Expenditures S ~ S 166,967 5 166,967 S 171,010
{(Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 4 - $(153,168) ${(153,168) ${(160,748)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers From
In (Cut):
1982 Sales Tax PFund & - S 168, 967 5 168, 967 S 162,798
1282 Sales Tax Fund - (13,050} (13,050) ( 39,288)
Total Other Financing
Sources S " $_155,917 $ 155,917 $_123,510
Excess (Deliciary) of
Revenues and Other
Sources Overy Expendi-
tures and QOther Uses 5 - S 22,7449 5 2,749 S{ 37,238)
Fund Balances at Beginning
of Year - 230,300 230,300 267,538
Fund Balances at End of Year S ~ S 233,049 $_233,049 S 230,300

See auditor's report.

76




CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

FY 1993 Capital Improvement Fund-To account for the receipt and use of loan proceeds
received from the issuance of Series 1993 $600,000 Certificate of Obligation.
Proceeds of these certificates are dedicated to specific capital improvements in the
City to include improving streets, reroofing the Community Center, improving
recreational facilities, renovations to City Hall, construction of a malintenance
ruilding at the city vard, sewer system rehabilitation, repairing the Kiwanis Park
water tower and to purchase eguipment.

FY 1995 Capital Improvement Fund-To account for the receipt and use of bond proceeds
received from the issuance of Series ST-1985 $1,725,000 Capital Improvement Bonds,
The proceeds of this bond issue are dedicated to refunding the City's $600,000 of
Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 1993, and paying the c¢ost of constructing,
acquiring, extending and improving sewers and sewerage disposal works, waterworks
facilities, drains and drainage facilities in the City.

FY 1998 Capital Improvement Fund-To account for the receipt and use of loan proceeds
received from the issuance of Series 1998 $750, 000 Certificates ©of Indebtedness,
Proceeds of these certificates are dedicated for the purpose of paying the costs of
(i) constructing, improving and maintaining streets, (ii) financing and/or
refinancing the purchase of vehicles and equipment, (iii) making other capital
improvements in the City and (iv) paying the costs incurred in connection with the
issuance thereof.
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT I
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 19259
With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 1998

FY 15898 FY 1983 Y 1985
CAPITAI CAPITAL CAPITAL TOTALS
PROJECTS PROJECTS PROJBECTS (MEMORANDUM ONLY)
FUND FUND FUND 19995 1998
ASSETS
Cash S 2,771 S - S 6,068 S 8,838 S 11,790
Investments 621,783 - - 621,783 —
Federal Grant - - - - ~
Notes - - - - -
Tot.al Assets $624,554 $ - $__6,068  $630.622 $_11,790

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Accounts Payable 5 - 5 - 4 - S - 4 -
Construction Contracts Payable - - - - -
Construction Retalnage Payable - - - - -
Due to Other Funds - - 5. 332 5,332 _

Total lL.iabilities 5 - 5 - 5 5,332 S 5,332 S —

Fund Balance (Deficit):
Unreserved-Undesignated 624,554 ~ 736 625,290 11,790

Total Iidabilities and
Fund Balance $624 ,554 S - 5 6,068 $630,622 § 11,790

See auditor's report.
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT I-1

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

ING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, BEXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended June 30, 19389
With Comparative Totals as of June 320, 1998

FY 1298 PY 192923 'Yy 1995%
CAPITAL CAPITAL CAPITAL TOTALS
PROJECTS PROJECTS PROJECTS (MEMORANDUM CONLY)
FUND FUND FUND 1999 19598
Revenues:
Interest Income S 23,620 5 - S 346 § 23,866 5 812
Total Revenues S 23,620 S - S 346 $ 23,966 S 812
Expenditures:
General Government 5 ~ 5 173 S 1,062 S 1,235 § 1,000
Adwinistration 10,582 - - 10,582 -
Furniture & Eguipment 46,100 - - 46,100 ~
City Hall Renovations - ~ 10,165 10,165 26,183
Street Overlay 81,584 - - 81,584 -
Eguipment Lease 10,800 - - 10,800 -
Total Expenditures S 149,060 g 173 S 11,227 S_160,466 S_27.,183
(Deficrency) of Revenues over
Expenditures 5(125,446) S (173) (10,881} S$(136,500)%(26,371)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from 1882 Sales
Tax Fund S - - - - 52,994
Transfer from 1865 Sales
Tax Fund - ~ - - 21,050
Transfer to FY 1993 (Capital
Projects Fund - - - ~ -
Certaficate of Indebted-
nesg 750,800 ~ - 750,000 -
Total Othery Financing
Sources (Uses) S 750,000 5 - 5 - S 750,000 & 74,044
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources
{Uses) Over Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources
(Uses) S 624,554 5 (173) ${10,881) % 613,500 $ 47,673
Fund Balances at Beginning
of Year - 173 11,617 11,780 _ (35,883)
Fund Balances (Deficit) at
Eng of Yeary S 624,554 N ~ S 736 $_625,290 s 11,790

See auditor's report.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds - To account for the provision of water and sewer
gervices to residents of the City. All activities necessary to provide such services are
accounted for in these two funds, including, but not limited to, administration,
operations, maintenance, financing, and related debt service, and billing and collection.
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT J
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE PFUNDS
COMBINT BAL HEET
June 30, 1998
With Conmparative Totals as of June 30, 1988
ASSETS
WATER SEWER ) TOTALS
FUND FUND . 1959 1998
Current Assets:
Cash & 258,778 0§ 16 8 258,754 S 144,351
Investments 3,643 - 3,043 -
Due from General Fund 9,600 4,886 14,486 14,486
Due from Sewer Fundg 14,932 - 14,932 14,892
Intergovernmental Grant
Receivable - - - 215,141
Receivables:
Accounts Receilvable 26,798 57,867 84,665 91,710
Less: Alliowance for
Uncollectible Accounts { . B8,400) ( 18,000} ( 26.,400) ( 26.,.400)
Total Recelvables S 18,388 S 39,867 5 58,265 S 65,310
Total Current Assets S 30%5,351 5§ 44,769 S 350,120 5 454,180
Restricted Assets:
Utility Customers' Deposits:
Cash S 28,930 & - S 28,930 & 7,017
Investments 9,045 - 9,045 92,500
S 127,875 3 - 3 127,975 5 106,517
Sewer Revenue Fund Cash - 16,168 16,168 186,210
Sewer Sinking Fund Cash - 61,860 1,860 119,808
Sewer Reserve Fund Cash - 5 5 5
Sewer Revenue Fund Investments - 229,974 229,974 -
Sewer Regerve Fund Investments - 196,803 196,803 195,390
SeweYy Renewal and
Replacement Fund Cash - 51,299 51,229 22,308
Total Resgtricted Assets S 127,975 § 556,109 5 684, 084 5 630,238
Plant and Equipment, at Cost 52,531,757 $ 6,365,173 S 8,896,930 S 8,224,044

Less: Accumulated Depreciation {698 ,703) {31,385,300) {2.084,603) {1,878,203)

$1,8332,054 & 4,979,273 & 6,812,327 & 6,345,841

Land 89,253 3,170 92,423 92,423

Construction in Progress ~ - ~ 3 190
Total Plant and

Eguipment $1.,922,307 & 4,882,443 $ 6,904,750 S 6,796,454

Total Assets 52,355,633 $ 5,583,327 S_ 7,938,954 6 7.880,872

{CONTINUED)
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT J
PROPRIETARY FUNDS {CONTINUED)
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED})
June 30, 1989
With Comparative Teotals as of June 30, 1988
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
WATER SEWER TOTALS
FUND FUND _ 1999 1598
current Liabilities (Payable From

Current Assels) :
Accounts Payable 5 7,795 S 8,259 S 16,054 5 16, 054
Contracts Pavable - - - 185,426
Retainage Payable - - - 29,715
Other Accrued Expenses - - - 3,750
Due to Water Fund - 14,932 14,932 14,892
Bank Overdraft ~ 38,734 38,734 _ T

Total Current Liabilitaies

{Payable from Current Assets) $ 7,795 S 61,925 5 65,720 § 249,837

Current Liabilities {(Payalble From

Restricted Assets) :
Customers' Deposits S 127,875 5 ~ $ 127,975 s 106,517
hoorued Bond Interest - 30,210 30,210 331,335
Revenue Bonds Pavyable - 100,000 100,000 95, 000

Total Current Liabilitaies
{Payable from Restricted
hsseis)

Long-Term Liabilities:
Revenue Bonds Payable
Total Liabilities

Egquity:
Contributed Capital:
Capital Grantis
Less: Amortization

Municipality
Total Contributed Capital

Retained Earnings:
Reseryved for Revenue Bond
Retirement
Unregerved - Undesignated
Total Retained Earnings
Total Eguity
Total Liabilities and

Equity

See auditor's report.

& 127,975

& 135,770

¢1 413,047
(258,413)
41,154,630

585,132
s1,739,762

S -

480,101
S__ 480,101
52,219,863

$2,365 .63
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$ 130,210

1,625,000
51,887,135

51,724,702

(229,150}

$1,505,553
1,677,798
$3,183,351

S 425,899

86,936
S 512,835
$3 £.186

5,583,321

& 258,185

1,69 00
$2,022, 905

$3,147,746

(487, 563)

52,660,183

2,262,930
54,923,113

& 425,899
567,037

$__ 992,936
$5.916,049

47,938,954

& 232,852

1.798,924
42,281,613

$2,881,921
446 ,218)
$2,435,703
2,262,930
$4,698,633

$ 397,386

503,240
S5 900,626
65,599,258

57 72
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City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT J-1
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETATNED EARNINGS
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
WATER SEWER _ TOTALS
FUND FUND 19995 1998
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services S 248,565 S 536,012 S 784,577 S 705,775
Connection Fees and
Other Revenue 11,866 15,2523 27,219 29,534
Total Operating
Revenues S 260,531 S 551,265 S 811, 796 5 735,309
Operating Expenses:
Salaries S 31,711 S 77,174 S 108,885 S 111,676
Pavroll Taxes and
Employee Benefaits 8,793 21,705 30,498 28,253
Supplies 19,181 13,349 32,530 35,500
Repairs and Maintenance 18,648 81,035 99,683 73,511
Vehicle Expense 2,374 5,084 7,458 9,900
Miscellaneocus 4,932 39,182 14,114 28,718
Utilaities and Telephone 26,108 112, 268 138,376 120,267
Depreciation 46,774 159,625 206,399 198, 285
Water Chlorinaticon 4,968 = 4,968 5,796
Postage and Office Supplies (121) 6,790 6,779 5,839
Insurance 8,512 B,480 16,992 11,152
Bad Debts 1,525 8,485 10,010 16,661
Engineering - _ = - 390
Total Operating
Expenses S 173,515 $ 533,177 S 706,692 S 6 67
Operating Income
(Loss) S 87,016 S 18,088 $ 105,104 S 89,352
Non-Operating Revenues
(Expenses) :
Interest Income S 1%, 988 S 17,088 S 33,076 S 31,421
Interest Expense - (84,280) (84.,280) (94,322)
Total Non-Operating
Revenues (Expenses) S 15,588 S (67,192) S {51,204) 5 2.,901)
Income {Loss) before
Operating Transfers S 103,004 $ (49,104) $ 53,900 S 26,451
(CONTINUED)
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City of Ponchatoula
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENURS,

EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30,
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,

18589

WATER SEWER
FUND FUND
Operating Transfers In (Out) :
General Fund S (2,935) S -
1993 Capital Projects Fund - -
Debt Service Fund - -
Water PFund ~ 5,430
Sewer Fund (5,430) -
Total Operating Transfers
In {Out) 5 {8,365) S 5,430
Net Income {(Loss) S 94,639 5 {(43,674)
Add: Current Year
Depreciation on Fixed
Assets Acqguired by Grants
Restricted for Construction
that Reduces Contributed
Capital 22,370 18,875
Increase (Decrease) in
Retained Earnings $ 117,009 S (24,699)
Retained Earnings -
Beginning of Year 363,092 537,534
Retained Earnings -
End of Year S_ 480,101 $_512,835

See auditor's report.
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EXHIRIT
{CONTINUED)
1998
TOTALS
19399 1998
$ (2,935) S 246
5;430 =
(5,430} -
{2,935} S 246
$ 50,965 S 26,697
41,345 46,486
$ 92,310 $ 73,183
900,626 B27,443
5_992,936 $ 900,626
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City of Ponchatoula
PROPRIETARY FUND

WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30,

1899

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

WATER
FUND

SEWER
FUND

Cash Flows From Operating
hActaivities:
Operating Income (Loss) S 87,016
Adjustments to Reconcile
Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating
Activities;
Deprecliation 46,774
Provision for Uncollectible
Accounts =
Changes in Assets andg
Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in
Accounts Receivable 2,163
Increase {Decrease) in
Accounts Pavable/
Accrued Expenses (1,746)
Increase (Decrease) in
Customer Deposits 21,458
Net Cash Provided
by Operating
Activities $ 155,665

Cash Flows From Noncapital
Financing Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in
Due from Sewer Fund $ {40}
{Increase) Decrease in Due from
General Fund -
Operating Transfers In
From Other Funds -
Operating Transfers Out
To Other Funds (8,365)
Increase in Due to Water Fund -
Net Cash Provided by
(Used 1n) Noncapital
Financing
Activities 3 (8,405)

5 18,088

159,625

4,882

(218, 269)

5 ( 35,674)

S 5,470

(CONTINUED)
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EXHIBIT J-2

TOTALS ~
1998 1998
S 105,104 S 89,352
206,399 198,285
- (47,400)
7,045 38,205
(220,015) 3,995
21,458 7.220
5 119, 991 $ 289,657
5 (40} S {8,399)
- {(14,486)
5,430 246
(B,365) .
40 9,399
(2,935) &  (14,240)




City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT J-2
PROPRIETARY FUND (CONTINUED) |
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 !
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
I
WATER SEWER _TOTALS
. FUND FUND 1993 1908
Cash Flows From Capital and
Related Financing Activities:
Capital Grants Received S - S 480,965 S 480,965 S 140,149
Construction of Capital Assets - (298, 752) {298, 752) (143, 049)
Purchase of Eguipment ( 15,943) ( 15,943) (54,863)
Contributed Capital -
Municipality - - - -
Proceeds from Revenue Bonds
Issued - - - ~
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds - ( 98, 924) ( 98, 924) (95, 000)
Interest Paid on Revenue Bonds - { 84,280} _{ 84.2890) __§{98.452)
Net Cash Used in
Capital and
Related Financing
Activities $ ( 15,943) § 991) $ ( 16,934) $ (251,215)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest Earned on Investments § 15,988 S 17,088 S 33,076 S 31,419
Purchase of Invegstments (102,688) (426, 777) (529,465) (334,390}
Proceeds from Maturities of
Investments 95,500 195,390 _ 254,890 234,390
Net Cash Provided by
Investing Activities $S__ _12.800 S_(214,239) $_(201.499) S 31.419
Increase (Decrease) in Cash S 144,117 S (245,494) S (101,377) S 55,621
Cash - Beginning of Year 143,591 336,108 479,699 424,078
Cash - End of Year $__ 287,708 S5___ 90,614 S__378.322 $_ 479,699
Reconciliation of Cash Accounts:
Unrestricted Cash S 258,778 S { 38,718) S 220,060 S 144,351
Restricted Cash 28,930 129,332 158,262 335,348
S 287,708 .. 20,614 S__378,322

See auditor's report.
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FIDUCIARY FUND

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

Cemetery Endowment Fund - To account for monies provided by private donors to defray

expenses of cleaning and maintaining the Ponchatoula Cemetery. The principal amount

of each gift is to be maintained intact and invested. Investment earnings
dedicated to cleaning and maintaining the cemetery. Funds collected are managed by
Ponchatoula Cemetery Endowment Board. This Board consists of five members, each
whom are branch managers of the five financial institutions located i1n the City,
are approved by the Mayor and City Council. This fund was established upon adopt
of Ordinance 408 by the Mayor and City Council on July 12, 1989.
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City of Ponchatoula
NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
CEMETERY ENDOWMENT FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 20, 1999 and 1988

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Investments
"Accrued Interest Receilivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

l.iabilities
Due to General Fund

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Reserved for Endowment Principal
Regserved for Cemetery Malntenance

Total Fund RBaiance

Total Liabilitieg and Fund Balance

See auditor's report.
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$ 89,322
222

$_89,581

EAHTIBIT K

1998

$ 84,472
258

$_84,731

S 84,472
259

S 84,731

5. 84,731




City of Ponchatoula EXHIBIT K-1
NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
CEMETERY ENDOWMENT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES TN FUND BALANCE

For the Years Ended June 30, 1899 and 1998

1999 19598
Operating Revenues:
Contraibutions S 4,850 5 7,296
Interest 3,564 4,126
Total Operating Revenues S B,814 S 11,422
Operating Expenses:
Cemetery Mailntenance S 3,964 S 4,126
Total Operating Expenses S 3,964 5 4,126
Net Income S 4,850 S 7,296
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 84,731 77,435
Fund Balance at End of Year S 89,581 S B4,731

See auditor's report.
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City of Ponchatoula
NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
CEMETERY ENDOWMENT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

—

For the Years Ended June 30, 19929 and

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities:
Increase (Decrease) in Due to General Fund

Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Proceeds from Maturities of Investments
Purchase of Investments

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Increase in Cash
Cagsh at Beginning of Year

Cash at End of Year

See auditor's report.
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1998

$ 4,850

S 4,850

S 84,472

(89,322)
{ 4.850)

EX

IBIT K-2

12058

$

7,296




GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

To account for faixed assets not used in proprietary fund operations.
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City of Ponchatoula

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF GENBERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY SOURCES

June 30, 1999 and 1998

General Fixed Assets, at Cost:
Land
Buildings
Improvements Cther Than Buildings
Equipment
Construction in Progress

Total General Fixed Ahsgets

Investment in General Fixed Assets from:
General Obligation Bonds
Federal Grants
State Grants
General Fund Revenues
Sales Tax Revenues
Equipment Millage
Federal Shared Revenues
Special Assessments
Gifts

Total Invegstment 1n General Fixed Assets

See auditor's report.

o2

1995

$ 281,748
2,153,678
3,893,225
1,037,949

7,366,600

$1, 752,043
1,963,666
833,129
1,340,767
881,556
218,173
238,318
45,948
93,000

$7.366,600

EXHIBIT 1,

1998

& 281,748
2,143,513
3,893,225

841,153

$7,159,639

$1,752, 044
1,953,540
833,129
1,209,645
881,556
152,459
238,318
45,948

23,000

7,159,639
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GENERAL LONG-TERM DERBT
ACCOUNT GROUP

To account for unmatured principal amounts on general long-term debt expected to be
financed from governmental type funds. Payment of maturing obligations,

interest,

are accounted for in the debt service funds.
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City of Ponchatoula

STATEMENTS OF GENERAL ILONG-TERM_ DEBT

June 30,

AMOUNT AVATLABLE AND TO BE PROVIDED FOR THE
PAYMENT OF GENERAIL LONG-TERM DEBT

hmount Available in Debt Service Funds

Amount to be Provided in Future

Years from:
Sales and Use Tax

General Fund Revenues
Repayment oi Note Receivable

Total Available and to be

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT PAYABLE

Pulrlic Improvement Bonds Pavable
Certificate of Obligation
Obligations Under (Capital Leases

Obligation Under Grant Agreement

See auditor's repori.

Provided

95

1989 and 1998

$ 226,934

$1,058, 066
Ble, 512
81,852

1,256,430

52,18 4

$1, 285, 000
757,500
59,012

81,852

$2,183,364

LEXHIB

L

=

M

19928

S 230,300

$1,154,700
84,173
112,626

1,351,439

$1,581,799

$1,385,000

22,500

61,673

112,626

$1,581,789




OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULES
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SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION
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PAID ELECTED OFFICIALS




City of Ponchatoula

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PATD ELECTED QOFFICIALS

Term of Office - July 1,

NAME AND ADDRESS

Julian E. Dufreche

125 Woodhaven Drive
Ponchatoula, LA 70454
(504)286-6281

C. W. Kinchen

248 West Hickory
Ponchatoula, LA 70454
(504)386-6275

Frank Self

484 North 11th street
Ponchatoula, LA 70454
{504)386-6348

James McKnight
333 West Magnolaia
Ponchatoula, LA
{504)386-6779

70454

Ora Lee Pea
1120 South First RR Ave

Ponchatoula, LA 70454
{(504)386-7693

Gary Stanga
175 Highland Road

Ponchatoula, LA
(504)386-3742

70454

Timothy J. Gideon
575 East Pine
Ponchatoula, LA
{504)386-2162

70454

See auditor's report.

June 30, 1999

POSITION

Mayor

City Council
District A

City Council
Digtrict B

City Council
District C

City Council
District D

City Council
District E
Mayor Pro-tem

Police Chief

98

1996 Through June 30,

2000

EXPIRATION OF

June

June

June

June

June

June

June

30,

30,

30,

30,

30,

30,

TERM OF QFFICE

2000

2000

2000

2000

2000

2000

2000

SCHEDULE 1

SALARY

5 39,600

6,000

6,000

6,000

6,000

6,000

34,262

$103,862




il

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASHE ACCOUNTS
CREATED PURSUANT TO ARTICLE V, SECTION 5 OF
THE $2,400,000 SEWER REVENUE BONDS SERIES 1991
LOAN AND PLEDGE AGREEMENT
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SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE
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(UNAUDITED}




INSURANCE COMPANY

A Municipal Risk

Management.

LA Municipal

Agency

Risk

Managoment Agency

LA Municipal
Management

L2 Municipal
Management

LA Municipal
Management

Risk
Agency

Ri1sk
Agency

Risk
Agency

Commercial Unioen

Commercial tUhnioen

City of Ponchatoula

June 30, 1995

COVERAGE
putomobile Liability
Bodily Injury/Physical Damage

Commercial General Liability
Premises/Operations
Products/Completed Operations
Medical Pavments

Per Person

Per Occurrence
Fire Legal Liability

Per Occourrence

Police Professional Liability
Personal Injury/Physical Damage

Public Officials Errors
and Omissions

workmen's Compengation

Commercial Policy
Fire/Police Station
Contents
Fire Station #2 Bullding
Fire Station #2 Contents
Police Station Building
Police Station Contents
Community Center Building
Community Center Contents
Mausoleum Building
Storage/Meeting Room Building
Storage/Meeting Room Contents
Fguipment Building
Watey Treatment Plant Building
Water Treatment Plant Equipment
Flat Car/Comb. Storage Building
Flat Car/Combk. Storage Contents
City Hall
City Hall Contents
Information Center
1976 Sewer Cleaner #A131117
1986 Case RBatkhoe #8973738
1986 J.0, Tractoxy #CHQ8505020474
1986 J.D. Tractor W/Disc #7003 / #3894
1987 J.D, Backhoe H#TO0310CA738154
1987 Street Sweeper #AA3E26
1984 Intl. Tractor HE&000009BO0S5745-X
Boiler Machinery
Premises No. 1
Premises No. B
Premises No. 9
Electronic Data Processing
Laptop
While in Trangit
automobile Policy
Comprehensive and Cce¢llisgion

{Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE 1IN _FORCE {UNAUDITED)

_AMOUNT
S 500,000
5 500,000
$ 500,000
5 1,000
> 1¢, 000
5 50,000
$ 500,000
$ 500,000
$1,000, 000
§ 368,600
5 37,500
5 152,100
5 7,100
5 117,100
5 11,900
51,311,000
5 59,500
5 122,800
S 27,700
2 10, 000
5 64,900
= 10,800
5 107,600
5 10, 800
& 26,900
5 519,100
G 40,900
5 15, 000
5 10,3954
5 19, 360
5 5,700
5 2,257
5 32,051
5 33,678
5 16, 000
& 750,000
5 500,000
Unlimited
v 31,600
5 25,000
ACV

SCHEDULE 3

EXPIRATION

DATHE
SF01/00

5/01/00
5/01/00
5/01/00
5/01/00
5/01/00

L/01/00

S /01700

L/01/00

1/01/00

7/12/99
7/12/99
7/12/99
7/12/99
7/12799
7/12/99
7/12/99
/12799
7/12/99
7/12/99%
7/12/99
7/12/9%
/12799
7/12/99
7/12/99
7/12/99
7/12/99
/12799
7/12/99
7/12/989
7/12/99
/12799
1/12/99
7/12/9%
7/12/99
1/12/99

7/12/99
7/12/9¢%
7/12/99

7/12/9%
7/12/99
11/23/99




City of Ponchatoula SCHEDULE 3
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE TN FORCE (UNAUDITED} (CONTINUED)
June 30, 198898
EXPIRATION
INSURANCE COMPANY COVERAGE AMOUN'T DATEH
Commercial Union Ponchatoula Collinswood Museum
ruilding 5 40, 000 8/03/99
Contents S 15, 000 8/03/99
Liability S 300,000 8/03/99
Fire S 100,000 £/03/99
Commeycial Union Enmployee Fidelity RBonds
Julian Dufreche S 40,000 12/05/99
Elizabeth LeSaicherre S 40,000 12/05/99
Ramona Umbach g 40, 000 12/05/9¢9
Gina Norton S 20,000 12/05/99
Stella Kraemer 5 20,000 12/05/9¢9
Marcia Sandifer 4 20,000 12/05/99
Sue Davis & 20,000 12/05/99
Gary Stanga 5 40,000 12/05/99
Philadelphia Life Insurance Accident and Health
Company Ponchatoula Civil Defense 4/23/00
Loss of Life, Limbs, or Sight 5 4,000
Medical Payments & 1,000
Daily In Hospital Benefait 5 25

See audlitor's report.
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SCHEDULE OF SEWER FUND USERES,
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RATES AND BILLINGS
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City of Ponchatoula

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF

FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 1999

Federal

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA
Grantor/Proaram or Cluster Title Number

DIRECT FEDERAL AWARDS:
U.5. Department of Housing

And Urban Development:

Passed through Louisiana
Division of Administration:

Community Development Block
Grants - Small Cities Program

FY 1996 LCDBG Contract #107-700157 14 .219

Total Expenditure of Federal Awards

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAI, INFORMATION :

U,

U.S8. Department of Housing

and Urban Development

Passed through Louisiana
Division of Administration:

Community Development Block
Grants - Small Cities Program

FY 1997 LCDBG Contract #107-800280 14.219
FY 1991 LCDBG Contract #501-7005 14 .219
FY 1821 LCDBG Contract #101-208 14.219

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban

S. Enviyonmental Protection Agency:

Passed through Louisiana Department
of Environmental Quality:

Municipal Facilities Revolving
Fund Loan Program Loan #
C5-221002-1

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

(Continued)
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Pags-Through
Entity Identifying
Number

Note 2{d}

Note 2{a)

Note 2 (b)

Development

Note 2 {a)

SCHEDULE 6

Federal
Expenditures

$273,043

$27 4

5168, 000

$168,000




City of Ponchatoula SCHEDULE &
{CONTINUED)
SCHREDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 20, 1995

Federal Pass-Through

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Entity Identifying Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

U Department of

LS.
Jugtice:

FY 1996 Local Law N/A N/A $ -
Enforcement Block

Grants Program
Award #96LBVX0946

FY 1997 Local Law N/A N/A -
Entorcement Block
Grants Program
Award #97LBVX3137

FY 1998 Local Law 32,946
Enforcement Block
Grants Program
Award #98LBVX3137

FY 1998 Local Law N/n N/A 33,973
Enforcement Block

Grants Program
Grant #98UMWX1423 }

Total U.S. Department
of Justice $_66,919

U.S. Department of
Trangsportation:

Passed through Loulsiana
Department of Transportation
ind Development:

Public Transportation 20.509 741-53-0104 S 107,862
Operating Assistance
Program ,

Total U.S. Department
Of Transportation $ 107,862

Total Federal Awards 5. 615,824

The accompanying hoteg are an integral part of this schedule.
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City of Ponchatoula

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For thce Yecar Ended June 30, 1999
Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of the City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana, and is presented on the accrual basis

of accounting. The information in this schedule 1s presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented 1n this schedule may differ from

amounts presented in, or used 1n the preparation of, the general purpose financial
statements.

Note 2., Other Supplementary Information

a. Indicates Community Development Block Grant low interest loan program for emergency
home repairs to benefit low income residents. The contract with the State Division
of Administration hag expired but we continue to maintain and gervice these low
interest loans, Total notes receivable at June 30, 1998, was 512,596, New loans
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, totaled $-0-. Princaipal payments during
the fiscal vyear ended June 30, 19%9, totaled $378. Total notes receivable as of
June 30, 19%9%, were S12,218. Delinguent notes receivable as of June 30, 1999,
totaled $11,261.

b. Indicates Community Development Block Grant for Economi¢ Development. This grant
is for roadway, lighting, watexr and sewer 1infrastructure improvements 1in the
Ponchatoula Industrial Park and a low interest loan to asgist J & M Industries, Inc.
Lo relocate. Their total) loans advanced to J & M Industries, Inc. as of June 30,
1999, were &250,000. Principal and interest received during vyear ended June 30,
1999, totaled $36,139. Notes receivable as of June 30, 189%, totaled S$82, 953.

C. Indicates $2,400,000 Sewer Revenue Bond issued by the City of Ponchatoula held by
the State of Louisiana, Department of Envivronmental Quality for improvewmentg to the
sewer gsystem and wastewater treatment plant., Funding is provided from the Municipal
Facilities Revolving Fund Loan Program. Bonds outstanding at June 30, 1998, totaled
$2,400,000. Additicnal drawdowns during the fiscal vyear ended June 30, 19899,
totaled $-0-. Principal repayments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999,
totaled $95,000. Bond ocutstanding as of June 30, 1999, totaled $1,795,000.

d. Indicates Community Development Block Grant for Economic Development., This grant
is for an economic development loan to assist J & M Industries, Inc., in facilitating
the expansion of its existing facility located 1in Ponchatoula, Louisiana. Their
total lcoans advanced to J & M Industries, Inc. as of June 30, 1995, were 5150,000.
Principal and interest received during the year ended June 30, 1899, totaled $6,253.
Notes receivable as of June 30, 1999 totaled $146,290.
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OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS
AND FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDDS
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Durnin & James

s CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

John N. Durnin, CPA¥* Member
Dennis E. James, CPA* Anicrican Instile of
*A Professional Corporation Cenlificd Public Arcountants

Member
Charles D. Mathews, CPA Sociely of Leuisiana
Bryon C. Garrety, CPA Cerlified Public Accounants

August 19, 1929

Indepepndent dudivor's Report on Compliance angd on Internal
Contyol Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in
Acgordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Julian E. Dufreche, Mayor
and the Members of the City Council

City of Ponchatoula, Loulsiana

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of The City of Ponchatoula,
Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report

thereon dated August 19, 1993, We conducted our audit in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in v it n , issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Compliance

Ags part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana’s
general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the

determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing &an opinien on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly. we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standardg which

are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and recommendations as jitemg 99-1
and 99-2.

nancial n

In planning and perfeorming our audit, we considered City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana’s
internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements
and not to provide assurance on the internal contreol over financial reporting. However,
we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and 1its
operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve
matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or
operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could
adversely affect City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana‘s ability to record, process, summarize
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CITY OF PONCHATOULA

and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the general
purpose financial statements. Reportable conditiong are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and recommendations as items 99-3 through 99-4. We also noted
other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have
reported to management of the City of Ponchatoula in a separate letter dated August 19,
1999,

A material weakness 18 a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one
or more of the specific internal control structure elements does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely peried by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions.

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control structure that might be reportable conditions and
accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also
considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we believe none of the
reportable conditions described above i1s a material weakness.

This report is for the information of management, federal awarding agencies, pass
through statistics the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and the Census Bureau. This
restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this report which, upon
acceptance by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana, is a
matter of public record.

Respectfully submitted,

Omin g

DURNIN & JAMES,| fPA's
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133
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Durnin & James

s CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS»

John N, Durnin, CPA¥* Member
Dennis E. James, CPA¥* American Instituie of
*A Professional Corporation Certified Public Accountants

Member
Charles D. Mathews, CPA Society of Louisiana
Bryon C. Garrety, CPA Certified Public Accountants

August 19, 1999

Independent Auditor’s Repo; on _Compliance with Regujremen
Applicable to Each Major Federal Fi ' '
Crodram ang tncterna) CRCYO.lL OVE QM aNCe
Y ' Lycul -

The Honorable Julian E. Dufreche, Mavor
and Members of the City Council
City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of City of Ponchatoula, Louilsiana, with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S8. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal

programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. The City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana’s major
federal programs are identified in the sgummary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule o¢of findings and questioned c¢osts. Compliance with the

requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs is the responsibility of City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana’s management.
Our responsibility 1is to express an opinion on City of Ponchatoula, Loulsiana’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Thoge standards
and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
agsurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program

occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of
Ponchatoula Louisiana’s compliance with those reguirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal

determination on City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana‘’s compliance with those reguirements.
In our opinion, City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana’s complied, in all material respects,

with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 1999,
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CITY OF PONCHATOULA

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of Jlaws,

regulationsgs, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana internal contrel over

compliance with redquirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal contreol over compliance would not necessarily digclose
all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance
with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be
material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their

assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance
and ite operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information of management, federal awarding agencies,
pass-through entities, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and the Census Bureau. This
restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which, upon
acceptance by the City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana, is a matter of public record.

Respectfully submitted,

) wmim <

DURNIN & JAMES,| ¢PA’'S
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City of Ponchatoula

H TN
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
COMPLIANCE

29-1 - gS8inking Fund Not Egtablighed

FINDING :

During our audit and testing of debt service payments, we noted the City did not establish
a special fund to be known as “City of Ponchatoula, State of Louisiana, Certificates of
Indebtedness, Series 1998 Sinking Fund” as required by the authorizing resolution adopted
to issue the certificates., The City did include in the FY 98-99 budget and actually paid
from the general fund the required interest payment due March 1, 1999.

RECOMMENDATJION :
We recommend the City immediately establish the sinking fund as reguired by the
authorigzing resolution and deposit sufficient funds to meet the funding reqguirements.

MANAGEMENT!S RESPONSE :

In management’s corrective action plan dated November 8, 19992, the Mayor indicated that
the City was under the assumption that a sinking fund was not required for the Series 1998
Certificate of Indebtedness. The required sinking fund will be established immediately
and funded in accordance with the authorizing resolution.

59-2 - Emplovee Uge of City Credit Cards

EFINDING :

During our audit and testing of expenditures, we noted an instance in which an employee
of the Main Street program while out of town for city business charged an unauthorized
purchase to the City’s c¢redit card. The accounts payable clerk immediately informed the

city clerk and notified the employee for prompt reimbursement to the City for the amount
due ,

RECOMMENDATION :
We recommend that the City adopt a comprehensive, written travel policy which is made a
part of the employee personnel manual. This policy, which can be communicated to each

employee who travels out of town on City business, should define what expenditures are
allowable, what documentation should accompany each expenditure and what is consgidered
prohibited expenditures.

MANAGEMENT 'S RESPONOSE :
In management'’s corrective action plan dated November 8, 1999, the Mayor indicated that
the City is presently drafting a comprehensive personnel manual and travel policy which

will include a section regarding the use of City credit cards.

L IAL REP
89-3 - r ADDT OV

FINDING:
During our audit and testing of expenditures, we noted instances in which approved
purchase orders did not accompany paid invoices. When reviewing the City’s policy for
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City of Ponchatoula

CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Year Ended June 30, 1992

INDPLNGS AND RECOMMENDAT ITON: NV ITINUED

approving invoices for payment with the accounts payable clerk, the city clerk and the
mayor, we noted the City does not have a formal, written peolicy for internal control
procedures over purchasing and accounts payable. The City has operated under a verbal
policy which cannot be sufficiently documented and which has not been updated recently.
Considering the population growth of the City and surrounding community and the impact
such growth has had on the City’s budget, we feel the City should adopt a comprehensive,
written purchasing policy to document the City’s procedures for purchasing and accounts
payable,

RECOMMENDATION :

We recommend that the C(City adopt a comprehensive, written purchasing policy which
documents in writing the City’s established internal control procedures over purchasing
and accounts payable. Such a written policy should be communicated to all responsible
personnel and could aid in establishing detailed 3job descriptions and employee
evaluations.

MANAGEMENT 'S RESPONSE:
In management’s corrective action plan dated November 8, 1999, the Mayor indicated he will
appoint the City Clerk to research and formulate a comprehensive, written purchasing

policy to document the City’s procedures for purchasing and accounts payable.

99-4 - No Establighed Travel Policy

FINDING:

During our audit and testing of cash disbursements, we noted instances in which the
documentation supporting the travel expenditure was not sufficient. We also noted that
the City does not have a comprehensive, written travel policy which defines what
expenditures are allowable, what documentation should accompany each expenditure and what
is considered prohibited expenditures.

RECOMMENDATION :
We recommend that the City adopt a comprehensive, written travel policy which is made a
part of the employee personnel manual. This policy, which can be communicated to each

employee who travels out of town on City business, should define what expenditures are
allowable, what documentation should accompany each expenditure and what is considered
prohibited expenditure. We recommend the City travel policy comply with the documentation
regquirements of the Internal Revenue Code with regards to meals, lodging and incidental
expenses.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE:

In management’s corrective action plan dated November 8, 1999, the Mayor indicated that
the City ig presently drafting a comprehensive personnel manual and plans to include a
travel policy for the City. Use of the City credit card, allowable expenditures,
documentation required and unallowable expenditures will be inciuded in the policy. The
policy will include the documentation regquirements of the Internal Revenue Code with
regards to meals, lodging and incidental expenses.

121




CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
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City of Ponchatoula

DRE E ACTION PLAN FOR JRE ' YEAR AUDIT FINDIN
For the Year Ended June 30, 1995

Name of
Ref . # Description of Finding Corrective Action Plan Contact Person
Conmpliance:
99-1 Sinking Fund Not Establish Sinking Fund Liz LeSaicherre
Established
98-2 Credit Card Use Adopt Travel Policy Julian Dufreche
Interpnal Control:
99-3 Purchase Orders Not Adopt Purchase Order Liz LeSaicherre
Approved Policy
99-4 Travel Policy Adopt Travel Policy Julian Dufreche
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Anticipated
Completion
Date

12/31/99%

12/31/99

12/31/99

12/31/99




SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOCR AUDIT FINDINGS
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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City of Ponchatoula

SCHEDULE QF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 199%

FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ CFDA FINDING/

_PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER = __NONCOMPLIANCE

None.

See auditor’s report.
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MANAGEMENT LETTER
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Durnin & James

« CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

John N. Durnin, CPA¥* Member
Dennis E. James, CPA* American Institute of
*A Professional Corporation Certified Public Accountants

Member
Charles D. Mathews, CPA Socicly of Lovisiana
Bryon C. Garrety, CPA Certified Public Accountants

August 19, 1999

Management Letter

The Honorable Julian E. Dufreche, Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana

Dear Mayor Dufreche and Members of City Council:

We have audited the financial statements of City of Ponchatoula as of and for the year
ended June 30, 19299, and have issued our report thereon dated August 19, 1999. We
conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of OMB and
Circular A-133.

As part of our examination, we have issued our report on the financial statements, dated
August 19, 1992, and our report on internal control and compliance with laws,
regulations, and contractg, dated August 195, 1535,

During the course of our examination, we became aware of the following matter which
represents a suggestion for improvement in existing policies and procedures.

Suggept 99-1 - Proof of Inpurance Regquired for Contractor

CONDITION:

During our audit and testing of expenditures, we noted ingtances in which contractors who
perform work for the City do not carry general 1liability insurance or workers'’
compensation insurance. As a result, the City must pay the cost of insurance for the jobs
these contractors perform for the City.

RECOMMENDATJION :
We recommend the City consider adopting a policy which requires contractorg to provide
proof of insurance before being awarded the contract,

MANAGEMENT' 'S RESPONSE:

In management’s corrective action plan dated November 8, 1999, the Mayor indicated that
the City will consider adopting a policy that contractors provide proof of insurance
before they can be considered for approval.
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CITY OF PONCHATOULA

We recommend management address the foregoing issue as an improvement to operations in
the administration of public programs. We arxe avallable to further explain the
suggestion of help implement the recommendation.

Respectfully submitted,

DURNIN & JAMES,
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Durnin & James

«CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS»

Johin N. Durnin, CPA¥* Coe e | Member
Dennis E. James, CPA* A AT American Instituie of
*A Professional Corporation et ‘--'étlr[iﬁcd Public Accoumants

Member
Charles D, Mathews, CPA Sociely of Louisiana
Bryon C. Garrety, CPA Certified Public Accountants

November 10, 1899

The Honorable Julian E. Dufreche, Mayor
and Members of the Ponchatoula City Council
City of Ponchatoula, Louisiana

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Ponchatoula for
the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated August 19, 1999.
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related
to our audit.

) ReBpOoneglb ler snerall : aptad Auditing € andardg ang Government Auﬂ._uil_lg
Standaxde

As stated in our engagement letter dated June 2, 1999, our responsibility, as described
by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of
material misstatement. Because of the concept of reasonable assurance and because we did
not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material
errors, irregularities, or illegal acts, including fraud and defalcations, may exist and
not be detected by us.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control structure of the City of
Ponchatoula. Such considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control structure.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of the City of Ponchatoula's compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. However, the objective
of our tests was not to provide an opinion on compliance with such provisions.

Significant Accounting Policlesg

Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting
policies. In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise
management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The
significant accounting policies used by the City of Ponchatoula are described in Note 1
to the general purpose financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and
the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 1333,
We noted no transactions entered into by the City of Ponchatoula during the year that were
both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required
to inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus.

P. O. Box 506 s 112 East Chestnut Stireet ® Amite, Louisiana 70422 ¢ (504)748-5134 e« Fax: (504)748-4116
103 North Sixth Street ¢ Ponchatoula, Louisiana 70454 ¢ (504)386-8180 ¢ Fax: (504)386-0210



g —— s

City of Ponchatoula
November 10, 1999
Page Two

Accounting REgtimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the general purpeose financial statements
prepared by management and arxe based o©on management's current Jjudgments. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
general purpose financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from management's current judgments.

Management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical water
and sewer revenues, historical loss levels, and an analysis of the collectibility of
individual accounts. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
allowance in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the proprietary fund-type
financial statements taken as a whole.

iqgn i

For purpeoses of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment
as a proposed correction of the general purpose financial statements that, in our
judgment, way not have been detected except through our auwditing procedures. These
adjustments may include those proposed by us but not recorded by the City of Ponchatoula
that could potentially cause future financial statements to be materially misstated, even
though we have concluded that such adjustments are not material to the current financial

statements,.

We proposed several audit adjustments related to accounts receivable and accounts payakle.
The corrections were not considered material in relation to the individual fund-type
financial statements of the City of Ponchatoula taken as a whole, The City has agreed to
the proposed audit adjustments and will record the adjustments in the accounting records
of the City of Ponchatoula for the yvear ended June 30, 1999.

Digagreementg with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management
ag a wmatter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be significant to the general purpose
financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

I E - 1ONE ] Johe pdaependent F N AT

To the best of our knowledge, management has not consulted with or obtained opinions from
other independent accountants during the past year that are subject to the regquirements
of Statement on Auditing Standards No. 50, "Reports on the Application of Accounting
Principles."”

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit.
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City of Poncha
November 10, 1
Page Three

This report is

toula
8999

for the information of management, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and

the Census Bureau. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this

report which,
Louisiana, is

DEJ/bdm
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upon acceptance by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Ponchatoula,
a matter of public record.

Respectfully submitted,

DURNIN & JAMES,




